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GLOSSARY OF DEFINED ACRONYMS AND TERMS

2024 Repurchase
Program

The authorization, commencing on
January 1, 2024 and expiring on
December 31, 2024, to repurchase up
to $125 million of the Corporation's
common stock; under this
authorization, up to $25 million of the
$125 million authorization may be used
to repurchase the Corporation's
preferred stock and outstanding
subordinated notes

ACL Allowance for credit losses

AFS Available for sale

ALCO Asset/Liability Management Committee

AOCI
Accumulated other comprehensive
(loss) income

ASC Accounting Standards Codification

ASU Accounting Standards Update

BHCA
Bank Holding Company Act of 1956, as
amended

bp or bps Basis point(s)

Capital Rules

Regulatory capital requirements
applicable to the Corporation and
Fulton Bank

Corporation,
Company, we, our or
us Fulton Financial Corporation

Directors' Plan
Amended and Restated 2023 Director
Equity Plan

Dodd-Frank Act
Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and
Consumer Protection Act

Employee Equity
Plan

2022 Amended and Restated Equity
and Cash Incentive Compensation
Plan

ETR Effective tax rate

Exchange Act
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended

FASB Financial Accounting Standards Board

FDIC Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation

Federal Reserve
Board

Board of Governors of the Federal
Reserve System

FHLB Federal Home Loan Bank

FOMC Federal Open Market Committee

FRB Federal Reserve Bank

FTE Fully taxable-equivalent

Fulton Bank or the
Bank Fulton Bank, N.A.

GAAP
U.S. generally accepted accounting
principles

HTM Held to maturity

LIBOR London Interbank Offered Rate

Management's
Discussion

Management’s Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and
Results of Operations

Merger
The acquisition by the Corporation of
Prudential Bancorp that was completed
effective as of July 1, 2022

MSRs Mortgage servicing rights

Loan and lease receivables (net of



Net loans
Loan and lease receivables (net of
unearned income)

NIM Net interest margin

N/M Not meaningful

OBS Off-balance-sheet

OCI Other comprehensive income

OREO Other real estate owned

Pension Plan Defined Benefit Pension Plan

Postretirement Plan Postretirement Benefits Plan

Prudential Bancorp Prudential Bancorp, Inc.

PSU
Performance-based restricted stock
unit

Republic First Bank
Republic First Bank, doing business as
Republic Bank
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Republic First
Assets and
Liabilities

The assets acquired and liabilities
assumed of Republic First Bank by
Fulton Bank in connection with the
Republic First Transaction.

Republic First
Transaction

The acquisition of substantially all of
the assets and assumption of
substantially all of the deposits and
certain liabilities of Republic First Bank
by Fulton Bank from the FDIC, as
receiver for Republic First Bank, as
described further in “Note 13—
Subsequent Events—Acquisition of all
of the Assets and Assumption of all of
the Deposits and Certain Liabilities of
Republic First Bank from the FDIC."

RSU Restricted stock unit

SBA Small Business Administration

SEC
United States Securities and Exchange
Commission

SOFR Secured Overnight Financing Rate

TruPS Trust Preferred Securities

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

The Corporation has made, and may continue to make, certain forward-looking statements with respect to its financial condition, results of operations and
business. Do not unduly rely on forward-looking statements. Forward-looking statements can be identified by the use of words such as "may," "should,"
"will," "could," "estimates," "predicts," "potential," "continue," "anticipates," "believes," "plans," "expects," "future," "intends," "projects," the negative of
these terms and other comparable terminology. These forward-looking statements may include projections of, or guidance on, the Corporation's future
financial performance, expected levels of future expenses, including future credit losses, anticipated growth strategies, descriptions of new business
initiatives and anticipated trends in the Corporation's business or financial results.

Forward-looking statements are neither historical facts, nor assurance of future performance. Instead, the statements are based on current beliefs,
expectations and assumptions regarding the future of the Corporation's business, future plans and strategies, projections, anticipated events and trends,
the economy and other future conditions. Because forward-looking statements relate to the future, they are subject to inherent uncertainties, risks and
changes in circumstances that are difficult to predict and many of which are outside of the Corporation's control, and actual results and financial condition
may differ materially from those indicated in the forward-looking statements. Therefore, you should not unduly rely on any of these forward-looking
statements. Any forward-looking statement is based only on information currently available and speaks only as of the date when made. In particular,
statements about the fair value of the Republic First Assets and Liabilities are based on information provided to the Corporation by the FDIC, some of
which has not been independently verified, and which is subject to change as the Corporation acquires additional information about the characteristics of
the acquired assets and assumed liabilities. See “Item 1A. Risk Factors—Our assumptions regarding the fair value of Republic First Assets and Liabilities
could be inaccurate which could materially and adversely affect our business, financial condition, results of operations, and future prospects.” Statements
about the Corporation’s beliefs regarding the impact of the Republic First Transaction, including statements about the value of the assets acquired and
the deposits and other liabilities assumed are subject to a number of factors, including the accuracy of the data provided by the FDIC with respect to the
acquired assets and assumed liabilities in the Republic First Transaction, the accuracy of the Corporation’s projections with respect to factors, including
with respect to future interest rates and allowances for credit losses, that may impact the value of the acquired assets and assumed liabilities, the ability of
the Corporation to integrate the acquired assets, assumed liabilities, customers, systems and management personnel following the completion of the
Republic First Transaction and the ability of the Corporation to manage costs (including in connection with potential future legal or regulatory costs
incurred in connection with the Republic First Transaction) and achieve its projected synergies following the completion of the Republic First Transaction.
See “Item 1A. Risk Factors—We may fail to realize the anticipated benefits of the Republic First Transaction” and “—We may incur unforeseen liabilities
or losses in connection with the Republic First Transaction.” The Corporation undertakes no obligation, other than as required by law, to update or revise
any forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise. Many factors could affect future financial results
including, without limitation:

• the impact of adverse conditions in the economy and financial markets, including increasing or elevated interest rates and elevated levels of
inflation, on the performance of the Corporation's loan portfolio and demand for the Corporation's products and services;

• the potential impacts of recent events affecting the financial services industry on the Corporation, including increased competition for, and costs
of, deposits and other funding sources, more stringent regulatory requirements relating to liquidity and interest rate risk management and capital
adequacy and increased FDIC insurance expenses;

• the effects of actions by the federal government, including those of the Federal Reserve Board and other government agencies, that impact the
money supply and market interest rates;
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• the effects of market interest rates, and the relative balances of interest rate-sensitive assets to interest rate-sensitive liabilities, on NIM and net
interest income;

• the composition of the Corporation's loan portfolio, including commercial mortgage loans, commercial and industrial loans and construction loans,
which collectively represent a majority of the loan portfolio, may expose the Corporation to increased credit risk;

• the effects of changes in interest rates on demand for the Corporation's products and services;
• investment securities gains and losses, including declines in the fair value of securities which may result in changes to earnings or shareholders'

equity;
• the effects of changes in interest rates or disruptions in liquidity markets on the Corporation's sources of funding;
• capital and liquidity strategies, including the Corporation's ability to comply with applicable capital and liquidity requirements, and the

Corporation's ability to generate capital internally or raise capital on favorable terms;
• the effects of competition on deposit rates and growth, loan rates and growth and NIM;
• possible goodwill impairment charges;
• the impact of operational risks, including the risk of human error, inadequate or failed internal processes and systems, computer and

telecommunications systems failures, faulty or incomplete data and an inadequate risk management framework;
• the loss of, or failure to safeguard, confidential or proprietary information;
• the Corporation's failure to identify and adequately and promptly address cybersecurity risks, including data breaches and cyberattacks;
• the impact of failures from third-party vendors upon which the Corporation relies to perform in accordance with contractual arrangements and the

effects of concerns about other financial institutions on the Corporation;
• the potential to incur losses in connection with repurchase and indemnification payments related to sold loans;
• the potential effects of climate change on the Corporation's business and results of operations;
• the potential effects of increases in non-performing assets, which may require the Corporation to increase the ACL, charge-off loans and incur

elevated collection and carrying costs related to such non-performing assets;
• the determination of the ACL, which depends significantly upon assumptions and judgments with respect to a variety of factors, including the

performance of the loan portfolio, the weighted-average remaining lives of different classifications of loans within the loan portfolio and current
and forecasted economic conditions, among other factors;

• the effects of the extensive level of regulation and supervision to which the Corporation and Fulton Bank are subject;
• changes in regulation and government policy, which could result in significant changes in banking and financial services regulation;
• the continuing impact of the Dodd-Frank Act on the Corporation's business and results of operations;
• the potential for negative consequences resulting from regulatory violations, investigations and examinations, including potential supervisory

actions, the assessment of fines and penalties, the imposition of sanctions, the need to undertake remedial actions and possible damage to the
Corporation's reputation;

• the effects of adverse outcomes in litigation and governmental or administrative proceedings;
• the effects of changes in U.S. federal, state or local tax laws;
• the effects of the significant amounts of time and expense associated with regulatory compliance and risk management;
• completed and potential acquisitions, including but not limited to the Republic First Transaction, may affect costs and the Corporation may not be

able to successfully integrate the acquired business or realize the anticipated benefits from such acquisitions;
• the possibility that the anticipated benefits of the Republic First Transaction, including anticipated cost savings and strategic gains, are not

realized when expected or at all, including as a result of the impact of, or challenges arising from, the integration of the acquired assets and
assumed liabilities into the Corporation, potential adverse reactions or changes to business or employee relationships, or as a result of other
unexpected factors or events;

• the Corporation's ability to successfully integrate into the Corporation's operations any assumed assets, liabilities, customers, systems, and
management personnel the Corporation may acquire in connection with the Republic First Transaction, which may result in a disruption to the
Corporation’s business;

• changes in the estimated fair value of the Republic First Assets and Liabilities in connection with the Republic First Transaction;
• the possibility of increased scrutiny by, and/or additional regulatory requirements of, governmental authorities as a result of the Republic First

Transaction;
• potential exposure to unknown or contingent risks and liabilities the Corporation has acquired, or may acquire, or target for acquisition, including

in connection with the purchase and assumption of certain assets and liabilities in connection with the Republic First Transaction;
• geopolitical conditions, including acts or threats of terrorism, actions taken by the United States or other governments in response to acts or

threats of terrorism and/or military conflicts, including the war between Russia and Ukraine and
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escalating conflict in the Middle East, which could impact business and economic conditions in the United States and abroad;
• public health crises and pandemics and their effects on the economic and business environments in which the Corporation operates, including

on the Corporation's credit quality and business operations, as well as the impact on general economic and financial market conditions;
• the Corporation's ability to achieve its growth plans;
• the Corporation's ability to attract and retain talented personnel;
• the effects of competition from financial service companies and other companies offering bank services;
• the Corporation's ability to keep pace with technological changes;
• the Corporation's reliance on its subsidiaries for substantially all of its revenues and its ability to pay dividends or other distributions;
• the effects of negative publicity on the Corporation's reputation; and
• other factors that may affect future results of the Corporation.
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Item 1. Financial Statements

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS 

(dollars in thousands, except per-share data)

March 31, 2024 December 31,

2023(unaudited)

ASSETS

Cash and due from banks $ 247,581 $ 300,343 

Interest-bearing deposits with other banks 109,752 249,367 

        Cash and cash equivalents 357,333 549,710 

FRB and FHLB stock 121,637 124,405 

Loans held for sale 10,624 15,158 

Investment securities

AFS, at estimated fair value 2,526,969 2,398,352 

HTM, at amortized cost 1,256,423 1,267,922 

Net loans 21,444,483 21,351,094 

Less: ACL - loans (297,888) (293,404)

Loans, net 21,146,595 21,057,690 

Net premises and equipment 213,541 222,881 

Accrued interest receivable 107,089 107,972 

Goodwill and net intangible assets 560,114 560,687 

Other assets 1,342,632 1,267,138 

Total Assets $ 27,642,957 $ 27,571,915 

LIABILITIES

Deposits:

Noninterest-bearing $ 5,086,514 $ 5,314,094 

Interest-bearing 16,655,436 16,223,529 

Total Deposits 21,741,950 21,537,623 

Borrowings:

Federal funds purchased — 240,000 

Federal Home Loan Bank advances 900,000 1,100,000 

Senior debt and subordinated debt 535,566 535,384 

Other borrowings 860,474 612,142 

Total Borrowings 2,296,040 2,487,526 

Accrued interest payable 26,362 35,083 

Other liabilities 820,926 751,544 

Total Liabilities $ 24,885,278 $ 24,811,776 

SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

Preferred stock, no par value, 10,000,000 shares authorized; Series A, 200,000 shares authorized and issued as of March

31, 2024 and December 31, 2023, liquidation preference of $1,000 per share 192,878 192,878 

Common stock, $2.50 par value, 600,000,000 shares authorized, 225,900,447 shares issued as of March 31, 2024 and

225,760,963 shares issued as of December 31, 2023 564,751 564,402 

Additional paid-in capital 1,554,624 1,552,860 

Retained earnings 1,651,133 1,619,300 

Accumulated other comprehensive loss (319,468) (312,280)

Treasury stock, at cost, 63,813,228 shares as of March 31, 2024 and 61,959,552 shares as of December 31, 2023 (886,239) (857,021)

Total Shareholders' Equity 2,757,679 2,760,139 

Total Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity $ 27,642,957 $ 27,571,915 

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME (UNAUDITED)

(dollars in thousands, except per-share data) Three months ended March 31

 2024 2023

Interest Income

Loans, including fees $ 311,216 $ 260,651 

Investment securities 25,122 25,521 

Other interest income 3,328 3,648 

Total Interest Income 339,666 289,820 

Interest Expense

Deposits 103,574 41,620 

Federal funds purchased 2,388 6,035 

Federal Home Loan Bank advances 10,949 15,473 

Senior debt and subordinated debt 5,305 5,344 

Other borrowings and interest-bearing liabilities 10,513 5,761 

Total Interest Expense 132,729 74,233 

Net Interest Income 206,937 215,587 

Provision for credit losses 10,925 24,544 

Net Interest Income After Provision for Credit Losses 196,012 191,043 

Non-Interest Income

Wealth management 20,155 18,062 

Commercial banking 18,829 17,513 

Consumer banking 11,668 11,217 

Mortgage banking 3,090 1,970 

Other 3,398 2,968 

Non-Interest Income Before Investment Securities (Losses) Gains, Net 57,140 51,730 

Investment securities gains, net — 23 

Total Non-Interest Income 57,140 51,753 

Non-Interest Expense

Salaries and employee benefits 95,481 89,283 

Data processing and software 17,661 15,796 

Net occupancy 16,149 14,438 

Other outside services 13,283 10,126 

FDIC insurance 6,104 4,795 

Equipment 4,040 3,389 

Professional fees 2,088 2,392 

Marketing 1,912 1,886 

Intangible amortization 573 674 

Other 20,309 16,837 

Total Non-Interest Expense 177,600 159,616 

Income Before Income Taxes 75,552 83,180 

Income taxes 13,611 14,866 

Net Income 61,941 68,314 

Preferred stock dividends (2,562) (2,562)

Net Income Available to Common Shareholders $ 59,379 $ 65,752 

PER SHARE:

Net income available to common shareholders (basic) $ 0.36 $ 0.39 

Net income available to common shareholders (diluted) 0.36 0.39 

Cash dividends 0.17 0.15 

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (UNAUDITED)

(dollars in thousands)

 
Three months ended March

31

 2024 2023

 

Net Income $ 61,941 $ 68,314 

Other Comprehensive Income/(Loss), net of tax:

Unrealized (losses) gains on AFS investment securities

Net unrealized holding (losses) gains (16,665) 32,641 

Reclassification adjustment for securities net change realized in net income — 18 

Amortization of net unrealized gains on AFS securities transferred to HTM 1,387 1,477 

         Net unrealized (losses) gains on AFS investment securities (15,278) 34,136 

Unrealized gains (losses) on interest rate derivatives used in cash flow hedges

         Net unrealized holding gains (losses) 4,297 (5,213)

Reclassification adjustment for net change realized in net income 3,899 5,536 

 Net unrealized gains on interest rate derivatives used in cash flow hedges 8,196 323 

Defined benefit pension plan and postretirement benefits

Amortization of net unrecognized pension and postretirement items (106) 25 

Other Comprehensive (Loss) Income (7,188) 34,484 

Total Comprehensive Income $ 54,753 $ 102,798 

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY (UNAUDITED)

(in thousands, except per-share data)

 Preferred Stock Common Stock Additional

Retained

Earnings

Accumulated Other

Comprehensive

Income (Loss)

Treasury

Stock Total 

Shares

Outstanding Amount

Shares

Outstanding Amount

Paid-in

Capital

Three months ended March 31, 2024

Balance at December 31, 2023 200 $ 192,878 163,801 $ 564,402 $ 1,552,860 $ 1,619,300 $ (312,280) $ (857,021) $ 2,760,139 

Net income 61,941 61,941 

Other comprehensive loss (7,188) (7,188)

Common stock issued 79 198 895 12 1,105 

Dividend reinvestment activity 87 184 1,221 1,405 

Stock-based compensation awards (repurchases) 54 151 685 (103) 733 

Acquisition of treasury stock (1,934) (30,348) (30,348)

Preferred stock dividend (2,562) (2,562)

Common stock dividends - $ 0.17 per share (27,546) (27,546)

Balance at March 31, 2024 200 $ 192,878 162,087 $ 564,751 $ 1,554,624 $ 1,651,133 $ (319,468) $ (886,239) $ 2,757,679 

Three months ended March 31, 2023

Balance at December 31, 2022 200 $ 192,878 167,599 $ 561,511 $ 1,541,840 $ 1,450,758 $ (385,476) $ (781,754) $ 2,579,757 

Net income 68,314 68,314 

Other comprehensive loss 34,484 34,484 

Common stock issued 89 223 998 14 1,235 

Dividend reinvestment activity 81 240 1,129 1,369 

Stock-based compensation awards (repurchases) 39 119 1,680 (140) 1,659 

Acquisition of treasury stock (2,412) (40,449) (40,449)

Preferred stock dividend (2,562) (2,562)

Common stock dividends - $ 0.15 per share (24,809) (24,809)

Balance at March 31, 2023 200 $ 192,878 165,396 $ 561,853 $ 1,544,758 $ 1,491,701 $ (350,992) $ (821,200) $ 2,618,998 

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

 Issuance of common stock includes issuance in connection with the Corporation’s Employee Stock Purchase Plan and exercised stock options.

(1)

(1)

(1)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (UNAUDITED)

(dollars in thousands) Three months ended March 31

 2024 2023

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Net income $ 61,941 $ 68,314 

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:

Provision for credit losses 10,925 24,544 

Depreciation and amortization of premises and equipment 7,796 7,319 

Net amortization of investment securities premiums 574 2,981 

Investment securities gains, net — (23)

Gain on sales of mortgage loans held for sale (1,697) (656)

Proceeds from sales of mortgage loans held for sale 95,388 41,928 

Originations of mortgage loans held for sale (89,157) (40,515)

Intangible amortization 573 674 

Amortization of issuance costs and discounts on long-term borrowings 182 180 

Loss on disposal of premises and equipment 3,313 137 

Stock-based compensation 836 1,668 

Net change in deferred federal income tax (2,330) 28,174 

Net change in accrued salaries and benefits (14,771) (24,436)

Net change in life insurance cash surrender value (3,563) (2,830)

Other changes, net 82,891 (61,496)

Total adjustments 90,960 (22,351)

Net cash provided by operating activities 152,901 45,963 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

Proceeds from sales of AFS securities — 80,362 

Proceeds from principal repayments and maturities of AFS securities 14,216 28,627 

Proceeds from principal repayments and maturities of HTM securities 13,015 15,103 

Purchase of AFS securities (208,968) (64,996)

Net change in FRB and FHLB stock 2,768 22,581 

Net change in loans (101,987) (404,842)

Net purchases of premises and equipment (1,769) (2,437)

Settlement of bank-owned life insurance 236 — 

Net change in tax credit investments (17,399) (12,412)

Net cash used in investing activities (299,888) (338,014)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Net change in demand and savings deposits (200,119) (390,376)

Net change in time deposits and brokered deposits 404,446 1,057,432 

Net change in other borrowings (191,668) (424,617)

Net proceeds from issuance of common stock 1,002 2,595 

Dividends paid (28,703) (27,702)

Acquisition of treasury stock (30,348) (40,449)

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities (45,390) 176,883 

Net decrease in Cash and Cash Equivalents (192,377) (115,168)

Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Period 549,710 681,921 

Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Period $ 357,333 $ 566,753 

Supplemental Disclosures of Cash Flow Information:

Cash paid during the period for:

Interest $ 141,450 $ 72,526 

Income taxes 6,764 7,308 

Supplemental Schedule of Certain Noncash Activities:

Unsettled maturities of AFS securities $ 42,500 $ — 

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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FULTON FINANCIAL CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDITED)

NOTE 1 – Basis of Presentation

The accompanying unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements of the Corporation have been prepared in conformity with GAAP for interim financial
information and with the instructions to Form 10-Q and Rule 10-01 of Regulation S-X. Accordingly, they do not include all of the information and notes
required by GAAP for complete financial statements. The preparation of financial statements in accordance with GAAP requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts of assets and liabilities as of the date of the financial statements as well as revenues and expenses
during the period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. In the opinion of management, all adjustments (consisting of normal recurring accruals)
considered necessary for a fair presentation have been included. These Consolidated Financial Statements should be read in conjunction with the
audited Consolidated Financial Statements and the notes thereto included in the Corporation's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2023. Operating results for the three months ended March 31, 2024 are not necessarily indicative of the results that may be expected for
the year ending December 31, 2024. The Corporation evaluates subsequent events through the date of filing of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q with
the SEC for potential recognition or disclosure in the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Significant Accounting Policies

The significant accounting policies used in preparation of the Consolidated Financial Statements are disclosed in the Corporation's 2023 Annual Report
on Form 10-K. Those significant accounting policies are unchanged at March 31, 2024.

Recently Adopted Accounting Standards

In June 2022, FASB issued ASU 2022-03 Fair Value Measurement (Topic 820): Fair Value Measurement of Equity Securities Subject to Contractual Sale
Restrictions ("ASU 2022-03"). This update clarifies how the fair value of equity securities subject to contractual sale restrictions is determined and
requires additional qualitative and quantitative disclosures for equity securities with contractual sale restrictions. The Corporation adopted ASU 2022-03
on January 1, 2024, and it did not have a material impact on its consolidated financial statements.

In March 2023, FASB issued ASU 2023-01 Leases (Topic 842): Common Control Arrangements ("ASU 2023-01"). This update clarifies guidance for
leases between related parties under common control. The Corporation adopted ASU 2023-01 on January 1, 2024, and it did not have a material impact
on its consolidated financial statements.

Recently Issued Accounting Standards

In November 2023, FASB issued ASU 2023-07 Segment Reporting (Topic 280): Improvements to Reportable Segment Disclosures ("ASU 2023-04").
This update requires public entities with reportable segments to provide additional and more detailed disclosures. The Corporation will adopt ASU 2023-
07 on December 15, 2024. The Corporation is not currently required to report segment information and, as such, does not expect the adoption of ASU
2023-07 to have an impact on its consolidated financial statements.

In December 2023, FASB issued ASU 2023-08 Intangibles - Goodwill and Other - Crypto Assets (Subtopic 350-60): Accounting for and Disclosure of
Crypto Assets ("ASU 2023-08"). This update provides guidance for crypto assets to be carried at fair value and requires additional disclosures. The
Corporation will adopt ASU 2023-08 on January 1, 2025. The Corporation does not expect the adoption of ASU 2023-08 to have an impact on its
consolidated financial statements. The Corporation currently does not hold crypto assets.

In December 2023, FASB issued ASU 2023-09 Income Taxes (Topic 740): Improvements to Income Tax Disclosures ("ASU 2023-09"). This update
requires companies to disclose specific categories in the income tax rate reconciliation and requires additional information for certain reconciling items.
The Corporation will adopt ASU 2023-09 on January 1, 2025. The Corporation does not expect the adoption of ASU 2023-09 to have an impact on its
consolidated financial statements.

In March 2024, FASB issued ASU 2024-01 Compensation - Stock Compensation (Topic 718): Scope Application of Profits Interest and Similar Awards
("ASU 2024-01"). This update provides guidance for profits interest and similar awards. The Corporation will adopt ASU 2024-01 on January 1, 2025. The
Corporation does not expect the adoption of ASU 2024-01 to have a material impact on its consolidated financial statements.

12



In March 2024, FASB issued ASU 2024-02 Codification Improvements - Amendments to Remove References to the Concepts Statements ("ASU 2024-
02"). This update contains amendments that remove references to various Concepts Statements. The Corporation will adopt ASU 2024-02 on January 1,
2025. The Corporation does not expect the adoption of ASU 2024-02 to have an impact on its consolidated financial statements.

Reclassifications

Certain amounts in the 2023 consolidated financial statements and notes have been reclassified to conform to the 2024 presentation.

NOTE 2 – Restrictions on Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash collateral is posted by the Corporation with counterparties to secure derivatives and other contracts, which is included in "interest-bearing deposits
with other banks" on the consolidated balance sheets. The amounts of such collateral as of March 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023 were $11.0 million
and $17.4 million, respectively.

NOTE 3 – Investment Securities

The following table presents the amortized cost and estimated fair values of investment securities:

March 31, 2024

Amortized
Cost

Gross
Unrealized

Gains

Gross
Unrealized

Losses

Estimated
Fair

Value

Available for Sale (dollars in thousands)

U.S. Government-sponsored agency securities $ 1,035 $ — $ (37) $ 998 

State and municipal securities 1,198,180 390 (146,311) 1,052,259 

Corporate debt securities 480,803 1,060 (37,596) 444,267 

Collateralized mortgage obligations 199,510 160 (12,242) 187,428 

Residential mortgage-backed securities 347,116 342 (30,626) 316,832 

Commercial mortgage-backed securities 621,778 — (96,593) 525,185 

   Total $ 2,848,422 $ 1,952 $ (323,405) $ 2,526,969 

Held to Maturity

Residential mortgage-backed securities $ 396,308 $ — $ (58,245) $ 338,063 

Commercial mortgage-backed securities 860,115 — (151,246) 708,869 

Total $ 1,256,423 $ — $ (209,491) $ 1,046,932 
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December 31, 2023

Amortized
Cost

Gross
Unrealized

Gains

Gross
Unrealized

Losses

Estimated
Fair

Value

Available for Sale (dollars in thousands)

U.S. Government securities $ 42,475 $ — $ (314) $ 42,161 

U.S. Government-sponsored agency securities 1,038 — (28) 1,010 

State and municipal securities 1,200,571 1,089 (129,647) 1,072,013 

Corporate debt securities 480,714 473 (40,636) 440,551 

Collateralized mortgage obligations 122,824 — (11,390) 111,434 

Residential mortgage-backed securities 223,273 7 (26,485) 196,795 

Commercial mortgage-backed securities 627,364 — (92,976) 534,388 

   Total $ 2,698,259 $ 1,569 $ (301,476) $ 2,398,352 

Held to Maturity

Residential mortgage-backed securities $ 407,075 $ — $ (51,805) $ 355,270 

Commercial mortgage-backed securities 860,847 — (143,910) 716,937 

Total $ 1,267,922 $ — $ (195,715) $ 1,072,207 

Securities carried at $0.6 billion and $0.4 billion at March 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023, respectively, were pledged as collateral to secure public and
trust deposits.

The amortized cost and estimated fair values of debt securities as of March 31, 2024, by contractual maturity, are shown in the following table. Actual
maturities may differ from contractual maturities because borrowers may have the right to call or prepay with or without call or prepayment penalties.

March 31, 2024

Available for Sale Held to Maturity

 

Amortized
Cost

Estimated
Fair Value

Amortized
Cost

Estimated
Fair Value

 (dollars in thousands)

Due in one year or less $ 9,342 $ 9,403 $ — $ — 

Due from one year to five years 180,221 171,975 — — 

Due from five years to ten years 486,781 453,657 — — 

Due after ten years 1,003,674 862,489 — — 

1,680,018 1,497,524 — — 

Residential mortgage-backed securities 347,116 316,832 396,308 338,063 

Commercial mortgage-backed securities 621,778 525,185 860,115 708,869 

Collateralized mortgage obligations 199,510 187,428 — — 

  Total $ 2,848,422 $ 2,526,969 $ 1,256,423 $ 1,046,932 

 Maturities for mortgage-backed securities and collateralized mortgage obligations are dependent upon the interest rate environment and prepayments on the

underlying loans.

The following table presents information related to gross realized gains and losses on the sales of securities:

Gross Realized
Gains

Gross Realized
Losses Net Gains (Losses)

Three months ended (dollars in thousands)

March 31, 2024 $ — $ — $ — 

March 31, 2023 283 (260) 23 

(1)

(1)

(1)

(1)
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The following tables present the gross unrealized losses and estimated fair values of investment securities, aggregated by investment category and length
of time that individual securities have been in a continuous unrealized loss position:

March 31, 2024

Less than 12 months 12 months or longer Total

Number of

Securities

Estimated

Fair Value

Unrealized

Losses

Number of

Securities

Estimated

Fair Value

Unrealized

Losses

Estimated

Fair Value

Unrealized

Losses

Available for Sale (dollars in thousands)

U.S. Government-sponsored agency securities — $ — $ — 1 $ 998 $ (37) $ 998 $ (37)

State and municipal securities 40 82,963 (1,072) 336 942,914 (145,239) 1,025,877 (146,311)

Corporate debt securities 3 15,247 (753) 64 392,222 (36,843) 407,469 (37,596)

Collateralized mortgage obligations 2 19,916 (56) 93 105,859 (12,186) 125,775 (12,242)

Residential mortgage-backed securities 15 18,591 (29) 69 187,840 (30,597) 206,431 (30,626)

Commercial mortgage-backed securities — — — 135 525,185 (96,593) 525,185 (96,593)

Total available for sale 60 $ 136,717 $ (1,910) 698 $ 2,155,018 $ (321,495) $ 2,291,735 $ (323,405)

Held to Maturity

Residential mortgage-backed securities — $ — $ — 120 $ 338,063 $ (58,245) $ 338,063 $ (58,245)

Commercial mortgage-backed securities — — — 60 708,869 (151,246) 708,869 (151,246)

Total held to maturity — $ — $ — 180 $ 1,046,932 $ (209,491) $ 1,046,932 $ (209,491)

December 31, 2023

Less than 12 months 12 months or longer Total

Number of

Securities

Estimated

Fair Value

Unrealized

Losses

Number of

Securities

Estimated

Fair Value

Unrealized

Losses

Estimated

Fair Value

Unrealized

Losses

Available for Sale (dollars in thousands)

U.S. Government Securities — $ — $ — 1 $ 42,161 $ (314) $ 42,161 $ (314)

U.S. Government-sponsored agency securities — — — 1 1,010 (28) 1,010 (28)

State and municipal securities 40 76,155 (858) 314 917,274 (128,789) 993,429 (129,647)

Corporate debt securities 8 42,945 (1,326) 60 370,523 (39,310) 413,468 (40,636)

Collateralized mortgage obligations — — — 93 111,434 (11,390) 111,434 (11,390)

Residential mortgage-backed securities 6 409 (3) 69 195,453 (26,482) 195,862 (26,485)

Commercial mortgage-backed securities 2 26,907 (1,053) 133 507,481 (91,923) 534,388 (92,976)

Total available for sale 56 $ 146,416 $ (3,240) 671 $ 2,145,336 $ (298,236) $ 2,291,752 $ (301,476)

Held to Maturity

Residential mortgage-backed securities — $ — $ — 120 $ 355,270 $ (51,805) $ 355,270 $ (51,805)

Commercial mortgage-backed securities — — — 60 716,937 (143,910) 716,937 (143,910)

    Total held to maturity — $ — $ — 180 $ 1,072,207 $ (195,715) $ 1,072,207 $ (195,715)

The Corporation's collateralized mortgage obligations, residential mortgage-backed securities and commercial mortgage-backed securities have
contractual terms that generally do not permit the issuer to settle the securities at a price less than the amortized cost of the investment. The change in
fair value of these securities is attributable to changes in interest rates and not credit quality. The Corporation does not have the intent to sell and does
not believe it will more likely than not be required to sell any of these securities prior to a recovery of their fair value to amortized cost. Therefore, the
Corporation does not have an ACL for these investments as of March 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023.

As of March 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023, no ACL was required for the Corporation's state and municipal securities. The Corporation does not have
the intent to sell and does not believe it will more likely than not be required to sell any of these securities prior to a recovery of their fair value to
amortized cost, which may be at maturity.
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The majority of the corporate debt securities were rated at or above investment grade as of March 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023. The Corporation
does not have the intent to sell and does not believe it will more likely than not to be required to sell any of these securities prior to a recovery of their fair
value to amortized cost, which may be at maturity. Based on the payment status, rating and management's evaluation of these securities, no ACL was
required for corporate debt securities as of March 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023.

NOTE 4 - Loans and Allowance for Credit Losses

Loans and leases, net of unearned income

Loans and leases, net of unearned income, are summarized as follows:

March 31,
2024

December 31, 2023

 (dollars in thousands)

Real estate - commercial mortgage $ 8,252,117 $ 8,127,728 

Commercial and industrial 4,467,589 4,545,552 

Real-estate - residential mortgage 5,395,720 5,325,923 

Real-estate - home equity 1,040,335 1,047,184 

Real-estate - construction 1,249,199 1,239,075 

Consumer 698,421 729,318 

Leases and other loans 341,102 336,314 

Net loans $ 21,444,483 $ 21,351,094 

 Includes no unearned income for March 31, 2024 and $41.0 thousand at December 31, 2023.

 Includes unearned income of $38.0 million at March 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023.

Allowance for Credit Losses

The ACL consists of reserves against loans that have been evaluated collectively and individually for expected credit losses. The ACL represents an
estimate of expected credit losses over the expected life of the loans as of the balance sheet date and is recorded as a reduction to net loans. The ACL is
increased by charges to expense, through the provision for credit losses, and decreased by charge-offs, net of recoveries. The reserve for OBS credit
exposures includes estimated losses on unfunded loan commitments, letters of credit and other OBS credit exposures.

The following table summarizes the ACL - loans balance and the reserve for OBS credit exposures balance:

March 31,
2024

December 31,
2023

(dollars in thousands)

ACL - loans $ 297,888 $ 293,404 

Reserve for OBS credit exposures $ 15,097 $ 17,254 

 Included in other liabilities on the consolidated balance sheets.

(1)

(2)

(1)

(2)

(1)

(1)
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The following table presents the activity in the ACL - loans balances:

Three months ended March 31

 2024 2023

(dollars in thousands)

Balance at beginning of period $ 293,404 $ 269,366 

Loans charged off (10,952) (16,903)

Recoveries of loans previously charged off 2,354 2,899 

Net loans (charged off) recovered (8,598) (14,004)

Provision for credit losses 13,082 23,333 

Balance at end of period 297,888 278,695 

Provision for OBS credit exposures (2,157) 1,211 

Reserve for OBS credit exposures $ 15,097 $ 17,539 

 Provision only includes the portion related to net loans.

The following table presents the activity in the ACL by portfolio segment:

Real Estate 

Commercial

Mortgage

Commercial and

Industrial

Real Estate Residential

Mortgage

Consumer and

Home

Equity

Real Estate

Construction

Leases and

other loans Total

 (dollars in thousands)

Three months ended March 31, 2024

Balance at December 31, 2023 $ 112,565 $ 74,266 $ 73,286 $ 17,604 $ 12,295 $ 3,388 $ 293,404 

Loans charged off (26) (7,632) (251) (2,238) — (805) (10,952)

Recoveries of loans previously charged off 152 1,248 116 676 — 162 2,354 

Net loans (charged off) recovered 126 (6,384) (135) (1,562) — (643) (8,598)

Provision for loan losses 1,801 9,001 65 646 671 898 13,082 

Balance at March 31, 2024 $ 114,492 $ 76,883 $ 73,216 $ 16,688 $ 12,966 $ 3,643 $ 297,888 

Three months ended March 31, 2023

Balance at December 31, 2022 $ 69,456 $ 70,116 $ 83,250 $ 26,429 $ 10,743 $ 9,372 $ 269,366 

Loans charged off (13,362) (612) — (2,206) — (723) (16,903)

Recoveries of loans previously charged off 786 1,086 48 661 202 116 2,899 

Net loans (charged off) recovered (12,576) 474 48 (1,545) 202 (607) (14,004)

Provision for loan and lease losses 9,376 6,536 2,911 2,419 701 1,390 23,333 

Balance at March 31, 2023 $ 66,256 $ 77,126 $ 86,209 $ 27,303 $ 11,646 $ 10,155 $ 278,695 

 Provision included in the table only includes the portion related to net loans.

The ACL may include qualitative adjustments intended to capture the impact of uncertainties not reflected in the quantitative models. In determining
qualitative adjustments, management considers changes in national, regional, and local economic and business conditions and their impact on the
lending environment, including underwriting standards and other factors affecting credit losses over the remaining life of each loan.

The increases in ACL - loans for the first quarter of 2024 were related to loan growth and risk migration.

Collateral-Dependent Loans

A loan or a lease is considered to be collateral-dependent when the debtor is experiencing financial difficulty and repayment is expected to be provided
substantially through the sale or operation of the collateral. For all classes of loans and leases deemed collateral-dependent, the Corporation elected the
practical expedient to estimate expected credit losses based on the collateral’s fair value less cost to sell. In most cases, the Corporation records a partial
charge-off to reduce the collateral-dependent loan or lease's carrying value to the collateral’s fair value less cost to sell. Substantially all of the collateral
supporting collateral-dependent loans or leases consists of various types of real estate, including residential properties, commercial properties, such as
retail centers, office buildings, and lodging, agricultural land, and vacant land.

(1)

(1)

(1)

(1)

(1)
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All loans individually evaluated for impairment are measured for losses on a quarterly basis. As of March 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023, substantially
all of the Corporation's individually evaluated loans with total commitments greater than or equal to $1.0 million were measured based on the estimated
fair value of each loan’s collateral, if any. Collateral could be in the form of real estate, in the case of commercial mortgages and construction loans, or
business assets, such as accounts receivables or inventory, in the case of commercial and industrial loans. Commercial and industrial loans may also be
secured by real estate.

As of March 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023, approximately 84% and 78%, respectively, of loans evaluated individually for impairment with principal
balances greater than or equal to $1.0 million, whose primary collateral consisted of real estate, were measured at estimated fair value using appraisals
performed by state certified third-party appraisers that had been updated in the preceding 12 months.

Non-accrual Loans

The following table presents total non-accrual loans, by class segment:

March 31, 2024 December 31, 2023

With a Related
Allowance

Without a
Related

Allowance Total
With a Related

Allowance

Without a
Related

Allowance Total

(dollars in thousands)

Real estate - commercial mortgage $ 31,912 $ 14,049 $ 45,961 $ 23,338 $ 21,467 $ 44,805 

Commercial and industrial 17,774 25,961 43,735 12,410 27,542 39,952 

Real estate - residential mortgage 21,217 2,028 23,245 18,806 2,018 20,824 

Real estate - home equity 5,164 95 5,259 4,649 104 4,753 

Real estate - construction 340 946 1,286 341 1,000 1,341 

Consumer 51 — 51 52 — 52 

Leases and other loans 432 9,659 10,091 9,255 638 9,893 

$ 76,890 $ 52,738 $ 129,628 $ 68,851 $ 52,769 $ 121,620 

As of March 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023, there were $ 52.7 million and $52.8 million, respectively, of non-accrual loans that did not have a specific
valuation allowance within the ACL. The estimated fair values of the collateral securing these loans exceeded their carrying amount, or the loans were
previously charged down to realizable collateral values. Accordingly, no specific valuation allowance was considered to be necessary.

Asset Quality

Maintaining an appropriate ACL is dependent on various factors, including the ability to identify potential problem loans in a timely manner. For
commercial construction, commercial and industrial, and commercial real estate, an internal risk rating process is used. The Corporation believes that
internal risk ratings are the most relevant credit quality indicator for these types of loans. The migration of loans through the various internal risk
categories is a significant component of the ACL methodology for these loans, which bases the probability of default on this migration. Assigning risk
ratings involves judgment. The Corporation's loan review officers provide a separate assessment of risk rating accuracy. Risk ratings may be changed
based on the ongoing monitoring procedures performed by loan officers or credit administration staff, or if specific loan review assessments identify a
deterioration or an improvement in a loan.
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The following table summarizes designated internal risk rating categories by portfolio segment and loan class, by origination year, in the current period:

March 31, 2024

(dollars in thousands)

Term Loans Amortized Cost Basis by Origination Year
Revolving

Loans

Revolving
Loans

converted to
Term Loans

Amortized Amortized

2024 2023 2022 2021 2020 Prior Cost Basis Cost Basis Total

Real estate - commercial mortgage

Pass $ 144,685 $ 821,641 $ 986,101 $ 1,188,735 $ 980,105 $ 3,486,974 $ 54,703 $ — $ 7,662,944 

Special Mention 226 1,793 44,169 141,371 10,370 138,537 3,485 897 340,848 

Substandard or Lower 218 6,622 33,988 35,564 50,009 120,983 941 — 248,325 

Total real estate - commercial

mortgage 145,129 830,056 1,064,258 1,365,670 1,040,484 3,746,494 59,129 897 8,252,117 

Real estate - commercial mortgage

Current period gross charge-offs — — — — — — — (26) (26)

Commercial and industrial

Pass 127,723 557,669 578,694 317,053 328,636 813,618 1,363,249 15,558 4,102,200 

Special Mention 3,598 7,317 4,914 11,961 4,288 29,121 60,971 — 122,170 

Substandard or Lower 1,962 5,733 25,849 9,091 3,723 52,592 139,180 5,089 243,219 

Total commercial and industrial 133,283 570,719 609,457 338,105 336,647 895,331 1,563,400 20,647 4,467,589 

Commercial and industrial

Current period gross charge-offs — — — — — — (3,997) (3,635) (7,632)

 Real estate - construction

Pass 29,344 402,019 283,072 207,525 2,334 41,288 14,146 — 979,728 

Special Mention — — 13,023 9,250 — — — — 22,273 

Substandard or Lower — — 605 — — 23,651 148 — 24,404 

Total real estate - construction 29,344 402,019 296,700 216,775 2,334 64,939 14,294 — 1,026,405 

Real estate - construction

Current period gross charge-offs — — — — — — — — — 

Total

Pass $ 301,752 $ 1,781,329 $ 1,847,867 $ 1,713,313 $ 1,311,075 $ 4,341,880 $ 1,432,098 $ 15,558 $ 12,744,872 

Special Mention 3,824 9,110 62,106 162,582 14,658 167,658 64,456 897 485,291 

Substandard or Lower 2,180 12,355 60,442 44,655 53,732 197,226 140,269 5,089 515,948 

Total $ 307,756 $ 1,802,794 $ 1,970,415 $ 1,920,550 $ 1,379,465 $ 4,706,764 $ 1,636,823 $ 21,544 $ 13,746,111 

Excludes real estate - construction - other.

(1)

(1)

(1) 
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The following table summarizes designated internal risk rating categories by portfolio segment and loan class, by origination year, in the prior period:

December 31, 2023

(dollars in thousands)

Term Loans Amortized Cost Basis by Origination Year

Revolving

Loans

Revolving

Loans

converted to

Term Loans

Amortized Amortized

2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 Prior Cost Basis Cost Basis Total

Real estate - commercial mortgage

Pass $ 783,673 $ 993,017 $ 1,203,852 $ 984,958 $ 721,857 $ 2,822,155 $ 59,253 $ 31,636 $ 7,600,401 

Special Mention 2,767 43,904 105,185 7,862 35,289 105,786 1,760 — 302,553 

Substandard or Lower 366 20,958 31,304 49,142 26,579 95,621 804 — 224,774 

Total real estate - commercial

mortgage 786,806 1,057,879 1,340,341 1,041,962 783,725 3,023,562 61,817 31,636 8,127,728 

Real estate - commercial mortgage

Current period gross charge-offs — — — — — (424) — (17,575) (17,999)

Commercial and industrial

Pass 626,386 590,132 330,576 341,218 272,126 598,838 1,443,203 10,736 4,213,215 

Special Mention 7,936 9,548 16,499 3,577 6,817 18,487 72,775 198 135,837 

Substandard or Lower 247 25,184 4,611 3,843 18,988 31,663 105,230 6,734 196,500 

Total commercial and industrial 634,569 624,864 351,686 348,638 297,931 648,988 1,621,208 17,668 4,545,552 

Commercial and industrial

Current period gross charge-offs — (299) — — — (249) (682) (8,016) (9,246)

Real estate - construction

Pass 322,922 258,080 261,583 37,426 9,510 34,097 13,677 — 937,295 

Special Mention — 12,622 25,898 — — — — — 38,520 

Substandard or Lower — 521 2,229 — 340 21,284 168 2,229 26,771 

Total real estate - construction 322,922 271,223 289,710 37,426 9,850 55,381 13,845 2,229 1,002,586 

Real estate - construction

Current period gross charge-offs — — — — — — — — — 

Total

Pass $ 1,732,981 $ 1,841,229 $ 1,796,011 $ 1,363,602 $ 1,003,493 $ 3,455,090 $ 1,516,133 $ 42,372 $ 12,750,911 

Special Mention 10,703 66,074 147,582 11,439 42,106 124,273 74,535 198 476,910 

Substandard or Lower 613 46,663 38,144 52,985 45,907 148,568 106,202 8,963 448,045 

Total $ 1,744,297 $ 1,953,966 $ 1,981,737 $ 1,428,026 $ 1,091,506 $ 3,727,931 $ 1,696,870 $ 51,533 $ 13,675,866 

 Excludes real estate - construction - other.

(1)

(1)

(1)
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The Corporation considers the performance of the loan portfolio and its impact on the ACL. The Corporation does not assign internal risk ratings to
smaller balance, homogeneous loans, such as home equity, residential mortgage, construction loans to individuals secured by residential real estate,
consumer and other loans. For these loans, the most relevant credit quality indicator is delinquency status and the Corporation evaluates credit quality
based on the aging status of the loan. The following tables present the amortized cost of these loans based on payment activity, by origination year, for
the periods shown:

March 31, 2024

(dollars in thousands)

Term Loans Amortized Cost Basis by Origination Year

Revolving

Loans

Revolving Loans

converted to Term

Loans

Amortized Amortized

2024 2023 2022 2021 2020 Prior Cost Basis Cost Basis Total

Real estate - residential mortgage

Performing $ 67,011 $ 646,785 $ 1,155,113 $ 1,667,801 $ 969,671 $ 848,654 $ — $ — $ 5,355,035 

Nonperforming — 377 2,178 3,967 4,456 29,707 — — 40,685 

    Total real estate - residential mortgage 67,011 647,162 1,157,291 1,671,768 974,127 878,361 — — 5,395,720 

Real estate - residential mortgage

Current period gross charge-offs — — — — — — — (251) (251)

Consumer and real estate - home equity

Performing 139,457 141,600 258,843 80,885 57,456 224,865 803,859 21,619 1,728,584 

Nonperforming — 76 698 478 342 5,790 1,119 1,669 10,172 

Total consumer and real estate - home equity 139,457 141,676 259,541 81,363 57,798 230,655 804,978 23,288 1,738,756 

Consumer and real estate - home equity

Current period gross charge-offs — — — — — (401) — (1,837) (2,238)

Leases and other loans

Performing 73,190 112,516 79,168 25,088 19,865 21,141 — — 330,968 

Nonperforming — — 408 — 23 9,703 — — 10,134 

Leases and other loans 73,190 112,516 79,576 25,088 19,888 30,844 — — 341,102 

Leases and other loans

Current period gross charge-offs (13) (259) (90) (62) (32) (173) — (176) (805)

Construction - other

Performing 10,366 142,825 60,623 7,118 — — — — 220,932 

Nonperforming — — 1,862 — — — — — 1,862 

Total construction - other 10,366 142,825 62,485 7,118 — — — — 222,794 

Construction - other

Current period gross charge-offs — — — — — — — — — 

Total

Performing $ 290,024 $ 1,043,726 $ 1,553,747 $ 1,780,892 $ 1,046,992 $ 1,094,660 $ 803,859 $ 21,619 $ 7,635,519 

Nonperforming — 453 5,146 4,445 4,821 45,200 1,119 1,669 62,853 

Total $ 290,024 $ 1,044,179 $ 1,558,893 $ 1,785,337 $ 1,051,813 $ 1,139,860 $ 804,978 $ 23,288 $ 7,698,372 
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December 31, 2023

(dollars in thousands)

Term Loans Amortized Cost Basis by Origination Year Revolving Loans

Revolving Loans

converted to

Term Loans

Amortized Amortized

2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 Prior Cost Basis Cost Basis Total

Real estate - residential mortgage

Performing $ 623,247 $ 1,126,656 $ 1,682,759 $ 984,050 $ 260,049 $ 607,133 $ — $ — $ 5,283,894 

Nonperforming — 1,720 4,888 4,701 6,233 24,487 — — 42,029 

    Total real estate - residential mortgage 623,247 1,128,376 1,687,647 988,751 266,282 631,620 — — 5,325,923 

Real estate - residential mortgage

Current period gross charge-offs — — — — — — — (62) (62)

Consumer and Real estate - home equity

Performing 272,571 276,373 85,985 62,426 37,667 204,913 805,645 20,044 1,765,624 

Nonperforming 295 455 866 282 354 5,526 1,439 1,661 10,878 

Total consumer and real estate - home equity 272,866 276,828 86,851 62,708 38,021 210,439 807,084 21,705 1,776,502 

Consumer and Real estate - home equity

Current period gross charge-offs (119) — — — — (525) (283) (6,587) (7,514)

Leases and other loans

Performing 166,490 83,641 27,755 22,304 16,246 9,867 — — 326,303 

Nonperforming — 118 — — — 9,893 — — 10,011 

Leases and other loans 166,490 83,759 27,755 22,304 16,246 19,760 — — 336,314 

Leases and other loans

Current period gross charge-offs (471) (521) (246) (128) (82) (656) (765) (1,511) (4,380)

Construction - other

Performing 127,382 93,319 13,698 555 — — — — 234,954 

Nonperforming — 1,535 — — — — — — 1,535 

Total construction - other 127,382 94,854 13,698 555 — — — — 236,489 

Construction - other

Current period gross charge-offs — — — — — — — — — 

Total

Performing $ 1,189,690 $ 1,579,989 $ 1,810,197 $ 1,069,335 $ 313,962 $ 821,913 $ 805,645 $ 20,044 $ 7,610,775 

Nonperforming 295 3,828 5,754 4,983 6,587 39,906 1,439 1,661 64,453 

Total $ 1,189,985 $ 1,583,817 $ 1,815,951 $ 1,074,318 $ 320,549 $ 861,819 $ 807,084 $ 21,705 $ 7,675,228 
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The following table presents non-performing assets:

March 31,
2024

December 31,
2023

 (dollars in thousands)

Non-accrual loans $ 129,628 $ 121,620 

Loans 90 days or more past due and still accruing 26,521 31,721 

Total non-performing loans 156,149 153,341 

OREO 277 896 

Total non-performing assets $ 156,426 $ 154,237 

 Excludes $19.0 million and $10.9 million of residential mortgage properties for which formal foreclosure proceedings were in process as of March 31,

2024 and December 31, 2023, respectively.

The following tables present the aging of the amortized cost basis of loans, by class segment:

30-59 60-89 ≥ 90 Days

Days Past Days Past Past Due Non-

Due Due and Accruing Accrual Current Total

(dollars in thousands)

March 31, 2024

Real estate - commercial mortgage $ 8,129 $ 2,795 $ 1,930 $ 45,961 $ 8,193,302 $ 8,252,117 

Commercial and industrial 6,262 2,777 383 43,735 4,414,432 4,467,589 

Real estate - residential mortgage 42,664 7,130 17,440 23,245 5,305,241 5,395,720 

Real estate - home equity 5,954 2,852 4,077 5,259 1,022,193 1,040,335 

Real estate - construction 987 297 1,862 1,286 1,244,767 1,249,199 

Consumer 6,641 1,602 785 51 689,342 698,421 

Leases and other loans 213 159 44 10,091 330,595 341,102 

Total $ 70,850 $ 17,612 $ 26,521 $ 129,628 $ 21,199,872 $ 21,444,483 

 Includes unearned income.

30-59 Days
Past
Due

60-89
Days Past

Due

≥ 90 Days
Past Due

and
Accruing

Non-
accrual Current Total

(dollars in thousands)

December 31, 2023

Real estate - commercial mortgage $ 4,408 $ 1,341 $ 1,722 $ 44,805 $ 8,075,452 $ 8,127,728 

Commercial and industrial 5,620 1,656 1,068 39,952 4,497,256 4,545,552 

Real estate - residential mortgage 49,145 10,838 21,205 20,824 5,223,911 5,325,923 

Real estate - home equity 8,142 2,075 5,326 4,753 1,026,888 1,047,184 

Real estate - construction 4,185 451 1,535 1,341 1,231,563 1,239,075 

Consumer 8,361 1,767 747 52 718,391 729,318 

Leases and other loans 146 722 118 9,893 325,435 336,314 

Total $ 80,007 $ 18,850 $ 31,721 $ 121,620 $ 21,098,896 $ 21,351,094 

 Includes unearned income.

Loan Modifications to Borrowers Experiencing Financial Difficulty

The Corporation modifies loans by providing a concession when deemed appropriate. Depending on the circumstances, a term extension, interest rate
reduction or principal forgiveness may be granted. In certain instances a combination of concessions may be provided to a borrower.

(1)

(1)

(1)

(1)

(1)

(1)

(1)

(1)
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When principal forgiveness is provided, the amount of principal forgiven is deemed to be uncollectible and the amortized cost basis of the loan is reduced
by the amount of the forgiven portion, with a corresponding reduction to the ACL.

The following table presents the amortized cost basis of the loans modified to borrowers experiencing financial difficulty, disaggregated by class of
financing receivable and type of concession granted:

Term Extension

Three months ended March 31, 2024 Three months ended March 31, 2023

Amortization Cost
Basis

% of Class of
Financing Receivable

Amortization Cost
Basis

% of Class of
Financing Receivable

(dollars in thousands)

Real estate - commercial mortgage $ — — % $ 1,426 0.02 %

Commercial and industrial — — 6,227 0.14 

Real estate - residential mortgage 2,717 0.05 1,182 0.02 

Real estate - construction 455 0.04 — — 

Total $ 3,172 $ 8,835 

Interest Rate Reduction and Term Extension

Three months ended March 31, 2024 Three months ended March 31, 2023

Amortized Cost
Basis

% of Class of
Financing Receivable

Amortized Cost
Basis

% of Class of
Financing Receivable

(dollars in thousands)

Real estate - residential mortgage $ 465 0.01 % $ — — %

Total $ 465 $ — 

The following table presents the financial effect of the modifications made to borrowers experiencing financial difficulty:

Term Extension

Financial Effect

Three months ended March 31, 2024

Real estate - residential mortgage

Added a weighted-average 6.27 years to the
life of loans, which reduced monthly
payment amounts for the borrowers.

Real estate - construction
Added a weighted-average 0.67 years to the
life of loans, which reduced monthly
payment amounts for the borrowers.

Three months ended March 31, 2023

Real estate - commercial mortgage
Added a weighted-average 1.91 years to the
life of loans, which reduced monthly
payment amounts for the borrowers.

Commercial and industrial
Added a weighted-average 0.77 years to the
life of loans, which reduced monthly
payment amounts for the borrowers.

Real estate - residential mortgage
Added a weighted-average 3.51 years to the
life of loans, which reduced monthly
payment amounts for the borrowers.

Interest Rate Reduction

Financial Effect

Three months ended March 31, 2024

Real estate - residential mortgage Reduced weighted-average interest rate from 4.37% to 2.71%

 There were no loan modifications with interest rate reductions for the three months ended March 31, 2023.

1

1
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During the three months ended March 31, 2024 and 2023, there were no loans modified due to financial difficulty where there was a principal balance
forgiveness.

The following table presents the performance of loans that have been modified due to financial difficulty in the previous 12 months:

30-89 90+ Total

Days Past Past Due Past

Current Due and Accruing Due

March 31, 2024 (dollars in thousands)

Commercial and industrial $ 8,498 $ — $ — $ — 

Real estate - residential mortgage 10,084 1,043 283 1,326 

Real estate - construction 455 — — — 

Total $ 19,037 $ 1,043 $ 283 $ 1,326 

There were no commitments to lend additional funds to borrowers with loan modifications as a result of financial difficulty as of March 31, 2024.

NOTE 5 – Mortgage Servicing Rights

The following table summarizes the changes in MSRs, which are included in other assets on the consolidated balance sheets, with adjustments to the
carrying value included in mortgage banking income on the consolidated statements of income:

Three months ended March 31

 2024 2023

 (dollars in thousands)

Amortized cost:

Balance at beginning of period $ 31,602 $ 34,217 

Originations of MSRs 582 196 

Amortization (1,127) (1,331)

Balance at end of period $ 31,057 $ 33,082 

Valuation allowance:

Balance at beginning of period $ — $ — 

Reduction (addition) to valuation allowance — — 

Balance at end of period $ — $ — 

Net MSRs at end of period $ 31,057 $ 33,082 

Estimated fair value of MSRs at end of period $ 51,191 $ 47,223 

MSRs represent the economic value of contractual rights to service mortgage loans that have been sold. The total portfolio of mortgage loans serviced by
the Corporation for unrelated third parties was $4.0 billion and $4.1 billion as of March 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023, respectively. Actual and
expected prepayments of the underlying mortgage loans can impact the fair values of the MSRs. The Corporation accounts for MSRs at the lower of
amortized cost or fair value.

The fair value of MSRs is estimated by discounting the estimated cash flows from servicing income, net of expense, over the expected life of the
underlying loans at a discount rate commensurate with the risk associated with these assets. Expected life is based on the contractual terms of the loans,
as adjusted for prepayment projections. The fair values of MSRs were $51.2 million and $49.7 million as of March 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023,
respectively. Based on its fair value analysis as of March 31, 2024, the Corporation determined that no valuation allowance was required as of March 31,
2024.
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NOTE 6 – Derivative Financial Instruments

The Corporation uses derivatives to manage its exposure to certain market risk, including interest rate and foreign currency risks, and to assist customers
with their risk management objectives. Certain of the Corporation's outstanding derivative contracts are designated as hedges, and none are entered into
for speculative purposes. The Corporation enters into derivative contracts that are intended to economically hedge certain of its risks, even if hedge
accounting does not apply or the Corporation elects not to apply hedge accounting.

In January 2023, the Corporation terminated interest rate derivatives designated as cash flow hedges with a combined notional amount of $ 1.0 billion. As
the hedged transaction continues to be probable, the original unrealized loss of $70.6 million included in AOCI will be recognized as a reduction to
interest income when the previously forecasted hedged item affects earnings in future periods. During the three months ended March 31, 2024, $7.0
million of these unrealized losses have been reclassified as a reduction of interest income on loans, including fees, on the Corporation's consolidated
statements of income.

In the third quarter of 2023, the Corporation transitioned certain of the Corporation's legacy commercial customer back-to-back interest rate swap
transactions from LIBOR to SOFR. For the three months ended March 31, 2024, the increase to other non-interest income to reflect market valuation
movements from the transition from LIBOR to SOFR was $0.2 million. For the year ended December 31, 2023, the full-year reduction to other non-
interest income related to the transition from LIBOR to SOFR was $1.9 million.

For additional information on our derivative accounting policies see Note 1 "Summary of Significant Accounting Policies" in our 2023 Annual Report on
Form 10-K.
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The following table presents a summary of the notional amounts and fair values of derivative financial instruments:

 March 31, 2024 December 31, 2023

 

Notional
Amount

Asset
(Liability)
Fair Value

Notional
Amount

Asset
(Liability)
Fair Value

 (dollars in thousands)

Interest Rate Locks with Customers

Positive fair values $ 164,041 $ 763 $ 119,558 $ 460 

Negative fair values 1,018 (4) 1,015 (2)

Forward Commitments

Positive fair values 48,250 11 — — 

Negative fair values — — 42,000 (854)

Interest Rate Derivatives with Customers

Positive fair values 622,369 8,264 824,659 22,656 

Negative fair values 4,044,521 (272,875) 3,784,236 (222,530)

Interest Rate Derivatives with Dealer Counterparties

Positive fair values 4,044,521 164,762 3,784,236 128,235 

Negative fair values 622,369 (8,630) 824,659 (23,023)

Interest Rate Derivatives used in Cash Flow Hedges

Positive fair values 2,300,000 1,060 2,500,000 6,189 

Negative fair values 950,000 (72) 750,000 — 

Foreign Exchange Contracts with Customers

Positive fair values 16,861 396 4,159 40 

Negative fair values 4,192 (179) 13,353 (446)

Foreign Exchange Contracts with Correspondent Banks

Positive fair values 5,656 222 15,969 532 

Negative fair values 18,449 (304) 6,112 (31)

 Fair Values are net of a valuation allowance of $366.3 thousand as of March 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023.

The following table presents the effect of cash flow hedge accounting on AOCI:

Amount of
Gain (Loss)

Recognized in
OCI on

Derivative

Amount of
Gain (Loss)

Recognized in
OCI Included
Component

Amount of Gain
(Loss)

Recognized in
OCI Excluded
Component

Location of Gain
(Loss) Recognized

from AOCI into
Income

Amount of Gain
(Loss)

Reclassified
from AOCI into

Income

Amount of Gain
(Loss)

Reclassified
from AOCI into

Income
Included

Component

Amount of Gain
(Loss)

Reclassified from
AOCI into Income

Excluded
Component

(dollars in thousands)

Three months ended March 31, 2024

Interest Rate Products $ (5,659) $ (5,659) $ — Interest Income $ (7,032) $ (7,032) $ — 

Interest Rate Products 11,215 11,215 — Interest Expense 2,020 2,020 — 

Total $ 5,556 $ 5,556 $ — $ (5,012) $ (5,012) $ — 

Three months ended March 31, 2023

Interest Rate Products $ 12,535 $ 12,535 — Interest Income $ (7,157) $ (7,157) — 

Total $ 12,535 $ 12,535 — $ (7,157) $ (7,157) — 

(1)

(1)
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During the next twelve months, the Corporation estimates that an additional $ 19.7 million of unrealized losses will be reclassified as a decrease to net
interest income.

The following table presents the effect of fair value and cash flow hedge accounting on the income statement:

Consolidated Statements of Income Classification

2024 2023

Interest Income Interest Expense Interest Income Interest Expense

(dollars in thousands)

Three months ended March 31

Total amounts of income line items presented in the consolidated
statements of income in which the effects of fair value or cash flow
hedges are recorded $ (7,032) $ 2,020 $ (7,157) $ — 

Interest contracts:

Amount of gain (loss) reclassified from AOCI into income (7,032) 2,020 (7,157) — 

Amount of gain or (loss) reclassified from AOCI into income as a result
that a forecasted transaction is no longer probable of occurring — — — — 

Amount of gain (loss) reclassified from AOCI into income - included
component (7,032) 2,020 (7,157) — 

Amount of gain (loss) reclassified from AOCI into income - excluded
component — — — — 

The following table presents a summary of the net fair value gains (losses) on derivative financial instruments:

Consolidated Statements of Income
Classification

Three months ended March
31

 2024 2023

(dollars in thousands)

Mortgage banking derivatives Mortgage banking income $ 1,167 $ 394 

Interest rate derivatives Other income 151 — 

Foreign exchange contracts Other income 39 91 

Net fair value gains/(losses) on derivative financial instruments $ 1,357 $ 485 

 Includes interest rate locks with customers and forward commitments.

Fair Value Option

The Corporation has elected to measure mortgage loans held for sale at fair value. The following table presents a summary of mortgage loans held for
sale and the impact of the fair value election on the consolidated financial statements:

March 31,
2024

December 31,
2023

 (dollars in thousands)

Amortized cost $ 10,434 $ 14,792 

Fair value 10,624 15,158 

 Cost basis of mortgage loans held for sale represents the unpaid principal balance.

Losses related to changes in fair values of mortgage loans held for sale were $ 0.2 million for the three months ended March 31, 2024 compared to gain of
$0.1 million for the three months ended March 31, 2023. The gains and losses are recorded on the consolidated income statements as adjustments to
mortgage banking income.

(1)

(1)

(1)

(1)
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Balance Sheet Offsetting

The fair values of interest rate derivative agreements and foreign exchange contracts the Corporation enters into with customers and dealer
counterparties may be eligible for offset on the consolidated balance sheets if they are subject to master netting arrangements or similar agreements. The
Corporation has elected to net its financial assets and liabilities designated as interest rate derivatives when offsetting is permitted. The following table
presents the Corporation's financial instruments that are eligible for offset, and the effects of offsetting, on the consolidated balance sheets:

Gross Amounts Gross Amounts Not Offset

Recognized  on the Consolidated

on the Balance Sheets

Consolidated Financial Cash Net

Balance Sheets Instruments Collateral Amount

(dollars in thousands)

March 31, 2024

Interest rate derivative assets $ 174,086 $ (9,663) $ — $ 164,423 

Foreign exchange derivative assets with correspondent banks 222 (222) — — 

Total $ 174,308 $ (9,885) $ — $ 164,423 

Interest rate derivative liabilities $ 281,577 $ (10,651) $ (109,005) $ 161,921 

Foreign exchange derivative liabilities with correspondent banks 304 (222) — 82 

Total $ 281,881 $ (10,873) $ (109,005) $ 162,003 

December 31, 2023

Interest rate derivative assets $ 157,080 $ (15,154) $ — $ 141,926 

Foreign exchange derivative assets with correspondent banks 532 (532) — — 

Total $ 157,612 $ (15,686) $ — $ 141,926 

Interest rate derivative liabilities $ 245,553 $ (21,343) $ (93,841) $ 130,369 

Foreign exchange derivative liabilities with correspondent banks 31 (532) — (501)

Total $ 245,584 $ (21,875) $ (93,841) $ 129,868 

 For interest rate derivative assets, amounts represent any derivative liability fair values that could be offset in the event of counterparty or customer default.

For interest rate derivative liabilities, amounts represent any derivative asset fair values that could be offset in the event of counterparty or customer default.

 Amounts represent cash collateral received from the counterparty or posted by the Corporation on interest rate derivative transactions and foreign exchange

contracts with financial institution counterparties. Interest rate derivatives with customers are collateralized by the same collateral securing the underlying

loans to those borrowers. Cash and securities collateral amounts are included in the table only to the extent of the net derivative fair values.

(1) (2)

(1)

(2)
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NOTE 7 – Accumulated Other Comprehensive (Loss) Income

The following table presents the components of other comprehensive income (loss):

Before-Tax
Amount Tax Effect

Net of Tax
Amount

(dollars in thousands)

Three months ended March 31, 2024

Net unrealized losses on securities $ (21,546) $ 4,881 $ (16,665)

Amortization of net unrealized gains on AFS securities transferred to HTM 1,793 (406) 1,387 

Net unrealized holding gains arising during the period on interest rate derivatives used in cash flow hedges 5,556 (1,259) 4,297 

Reclassification adjustment for net change realized in net income on interest rate derivatives used in cash flow

hedges 5,012 (1,113) 3,899 

Amortization of net unrecognized pension and postretirement items (135) 29 (106)

Total Other Comprehensive Loss $ (9,320) $ 2,132 $ (7,188)

Three months ended March 31, 2023

Net unrealized gains on securities $ 42,199 $ (9,558) $ 32,641 

Reclassification adjustment for securities net change included in net income 23 (5) 18 

Amortization of net unrealized gains on AFS securities transferred to HTM 1,910 (433) 1,477 

Net unrealized holding gains arising during the period on interest rate derivatives used in cash flow hedges 12,535 (17,748) (5,213)

Reclassification adjustment for net change realized in net income on interest rate derivatives used in cash flow

hedges 7,157 (1,621) 5,536 

Amortization of net unrecognized pension and postretirement items 32 (7) 25 

Total Other Comprehensive Loss $ 63,856 $ (29,372) $ 34,484 

Amounts reclassified out of AOCI. Before-tax amounts included as a reduction to "Interest Income" on the Consolidated Statements of Income.

 Amounts reclassified out of AOCI. Before-tax amounts included in "Salaries and employee benefits" on the Consolidated Statements of Income. See "Note

11 - Employee Benefit Plans," for additional details.

 Amounts reclassified out of AOCI. Before-tax amounts included in "Investment securities gains, net" on the Consolidated Statements of Income. See "Note 3

- Investment Securities," for additional details.

The following table presents changes in each component of accumulated other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax:

Unrealized Gains
(Losses) on
Investment
Securities

Net Unrealized
Gain (Loss) on
Interest Rate

Derivatives used
in Cash Flow

Hedges

Unrecognized
Pension and

Postretirement Plan
Income (Costs) Total

(dollars in thousands)

Three months ended March 31, 2024

Balance at December 31, 2023 $ (274,862) $ (34,783) $ (2,635) $ (312,280)

OCI before reclassifications (16,665) 4,297 — (12,368)

Amounts reclassified from AOCI — 3,899 (106) 3,793 

Amortization of net unrealized gains on AFS securities transferred to HTM 1,387 — — 1,387 

Balance at March 31, 2024 $ (290,140) $ (26,587) $ (2,741) $ (319,468)

Three months ended March 31, 2023

Balance at December 31, 2022 $ (316,231) $ (61,776) $ (7,469) $ (385,476)

OCI before reclassifications 32,641 — — 32,641 

Amounts reclassified from AOCI 18 323 25 366 

Amortization of net unrealized losses on AFS securities transferred to HTM 1,477 — — 1,477 

Balance at March 31, 2023 $ (282,095) $ (61,453) $ (7,444) $ (350,992)

(1)

(2)

(3)

(1)

(2)

(1) 

(2)

(3)
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NOTE 8 – Fair Value Measurements

FASB ASC Topic 820 establishes a fair value hierarchy for the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure assets and liabilities at fair value using the
following three categories (from highest to lowest priority):

• Level 1 – Inputs that represent quoted prices for identical instruments in active markets.
• Level 2 – Inputs that represent quoted prices for similar instruments in active markets or quoted prices for identical instruments in non-active

markets. Also includes valuation techniques whose inputs are derived principally from observable market data other than quoted prices, such as
interest rates or other market-corroborated means.

• Level 3 – Inputs that are largely unobservable, as little or no market data exists for the instrument being valued.

All assets and liabilities measured at fair value on both a recurring and nonrecurring basis have been categorized into the above three levels. The
following tables present assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis and reported on the consolidated balance sheets:

 March 31, 2024

 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

 (dollars in thousands)

Loans held for sale $ — $ 10,624 $ — $ 10,624 

Available for sale investment securities:

U.S. Government-sponsored agency securities — 998 — 998 

State and municipal securities — 1,052,259 — 1,052,259 

Corporate debt securities — 444,267 — 444,267 

Collateralized mortgage obligations — 187,428 — 187,428 

Residential mortgage-backed securities — 316,832 — 316,832 

Commercial mortgage-backed securities — 525,185 — 525,185 

Total available for sale investment securities — 2,526,969 — 2,526,969 

Other assets:

Investments held in Rabbi Trust 32,562 — — 32,562 

Derivative assets 618 174,860 — 175,478 

Total assets $ 33,180 $ 2,712,453 $ — $ 2,745,633 

Other liabilities:

Deferred compensation liabilities $ 32,562 $ — $ — $ 32,562 

Derivative liabilities 483 281,581 — 282,064 

Total liabilities $ 33,045 $ 281,581 $ — $ 314,626 
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 December 31, 2023

 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

 (dollars in thousands)

Loans held for sale $ — $ 15,158 $ — $ 15,158 

Available for sale investment securities:

U.S. Government securities 42,161 — — 42,161 

U.S. Government sponsored agency securities — 1,010 — 1,010 

State and municipal securities — 1,072,013 — 1,072,013 

Corporate debt securities — 440,551 — 440,551 

Collateralized mortgage obligations — 111,434 — 111,434 

Residential mortgage-backed securities — 196,795 — 196,795 

Commercial mortgage-backed securities — 534,388 — 534,388 

Total available for sale investment securities 42,161 2,356,191 — 2,398,352 

Other assets:

Investments held in Rabbi Trust 29,819 — — 29,819 

Derivative assets 572 157,540 — 158,112 

Total assets $ 72,552 $ 2,528,889 $ — $ 2,601,441 

Other liabilities:

Deferred compensation liabilities $ 29,819 $ — $ — $ 29,819 

Derivative liabilities 477 246,157 — 246,634 

Total liabilities $ 30,296 $ 246,157 $ — $ 276,453 

The valuation techniques used to measure fair value for the items in the preceding tables are as follows:

Loans held for sale – This category includes mortgage loans held for sale that are measured at fair value. Fair values as of March 31, 2024 and
December 31, 2023, were measured at the price that secondary market investors were offering for loans with similar characteristics.

Available for sale investment securities  – Included in this asset category are debt securities. Level 2 investment securities are valued by a third-party
pricing service. The pricing service uses pricing models that vary based on asset class and incorporate available market information, including quoted
prices of investment securities with similar characteristics. Because many fixed income securities do not trade on a daily basis, pricing models use
available information, as applicable, through processes such as benchmark yield curves, benchmarking of like securities, sector groupings and matrix
pricing.

Standard market inputs include: benchmark yields, reported trades, broker/dealer quotes, issuer spreads, two-sided markets, benchmark securities, bids,
offers and reference data, including market research publications. For certain security types, additional inputs may be used, or some of the standard
market inputs may not be applicable.

• U.S. Government securities – These securities are classified as Level 1. Fair values are based on quoted prices with active markets.

• U.S. Government-sponsored agency securities, State and municipal securities/Collateralized mortgage obligations/Residential mortgage-backed
securities/Commercial mortgage-backed securities – These debt securities are classified as Level 2. Fair values are determined by a third-party
pricing service, as detailed above.

• Corporate debt securities – This category consists of subordinated debt and senior debt issued by financial institutions ($ 437.1 million at
March 31, 2024 and $433.4 million at December 31, 2023) and other corporate debt issued by non-financial institutions ($ 7.2 million at March 31,
2024 and December 31, 2023).

Level 2 investments include subordinated debt and senior debt, and other corporate debt issued by non-financial institutions at March 31, 2024
and December 31, 2023. The fair values for these corporate debt securities are determined by a third-party pricing service, as detailed above.
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Investments held in Rabbi Trust  – This category consists of mutual funds that are held in trust for employee deferred compensation plans that the
Corporation has elected to measure at fair value. Shares of mutual funds are valued based on net asset value, which represent quoted market
prices for the underlying shares held in the mutual funds, and as such, are classified as Level 1.

Derivative assets – Fair value of foreign currency exchange contracts are classified as Level 1 assets ($ 0.6 million at March 31, 2024 and December 31,
2023). The mutual funds and foreign exchange prices used to measure these items at fair value are based on quoted prices for identical instruments in
active markets.

Level 2 assets, representing the fair value of mortgage banking derivatives in the form of interest rate locks and forward commitments with secondary
market investors ($0.8 million at March 31, 2024 and $ 0.5 million at December 31, 2023) and the fair value of interest rate derivatives ($ 174.1 million at
March 31, 2024 and $157.1 million at December 31, 2023). The fair values of the interest rate locks, forward commitments and interest rate derivatives
represent the amounts that would be required to settle the derivative financial instruments at the balance sheet date. See "Note 6 - Derivative Financial
Instruments," for additional information.

Deferred compensation liabilities  – Fair value of amounts due to employees under deferred compensation plans, classified as Level 1 liabilities and are
included in other liabilities on the consolidated balance sheets. The fair values of these liabilities are determined in the same manner as the related
assets, as described under the heading "Investments held in Rabbi Trust" above.

Derivative liabilities – Level 1 liabilities, representing the fair value of foreign currency exchange contracts ($ 0.5 million at March 31, 2024 and
December 31, 2023).

Level 2 liabilities, representing the fair value of mortgage banking derivatives in the form of interest rate locks and forward commitments with secondary
market investors ($0 at March 31, 2024 and $ 0.9 million at December 31, 2023) and the fair value of interest rate derivatives ($ 281.6 million at March 31,
2024 and $245.6 million at December 31, 2023).

The fair values of these liabilities are determined in the same manner as the related assets, as described under the heading "Derivative assets" above.

Certain financial instruments are not measured at fair value on an ongoing basis but are subject to fair value measurement in certain circumstances, such
as upon their acquisition or when there is evidence of impairment. The following table presents Level 3 financial assets measured at fair value on a
nonrecurring basis:

 

March 31,
2024

December 31,
2023

 (dollars in thousands)

Loans, net $ 107,915 $ 102,135 

OREO 277 896 

MSRs 51,191 49,696 

Total assets $ 159,383 $ 152,727 

 Amounts shown are estimated fair value. MSRs are recorded on the Corporation's consolidated balance sheets at the lower of amortized cost or fair value.

See "Note 5 - Mortgage Servicing Rights" for additional information.

The valuation techniques used to measure fair value for the items in the table above are as follows:

• Loans, net – This category consists of loans that were individually evaluated for impairment and have been classified as Level 3 assets. The
amount shown is the balance of non-accrual loans, net of related ACL. See "Note 4 - Loans and Allowance for Credit Losses," for additional
details.

• OREO – This category consists of OREO classified as Level 3 assets, for which the fair values were based on estimated selling prices less
estimated selling costs for similar assets in active markets.

(1)

(1)
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• MSRs – This category consists of MSRs, which were initially recorded at fair value upon the sale of residential mortgage loans to secondary
market investors, and subsequently carried at the lower of amortized cost or fair value. MSRs are amortized as a reduction to servicing income
over the estimated lives of the underlying loans. MSRs are stratified by product type and evaluated for impairment by comparing each stratum's
carrying amount to its estimated fair value. Fair values are determined at the end of each quarter through a discounted cash flows valuation
performed by a third-party valuation expert. Significant inputs to the valuation included expected net servicing income, the discount rate and the
expected life of the underlying loans. Expected life is based on the contractual terms of the loans, as adjusted for prepayment projections. The
weighted average annual constant prepayment rate and the weighted average discount rate used in the March 31, 2024 valuation were 7.3%
and 9.5%, respectively. Management reviews the reasonableness of the significant inputs to the third-party valuation in comparison to market
data. See "Note 5 - Mortgage Servicing Rights," for additional information.

The following tables detail the book values and the estimated fair values of the Corporation's financial instruments:

 March 31, 2024

Estimated Fair Value

Carrying Amount Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

(dollars in thousands)

FINANCIAL ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents $ 357,333 $ 357,333 $ — $ — $ 357,333 

FRB and FHLB stock 121,637 — 121,637 — 121,637 

Loans held for sale 10,624 — 10,624 — 10,624 

AFS securities 2,526,969 — 2,526,969 — 2,526,969 

HTM securities 1,256,423 — 1,046,932 — 1,046,932 

Loans, net 21,146,595 — — 20,044,269 20,044,269 

Accrued interest receivable 107,089 107,089 — — 107,089 

Other assets 764,332 558,210 174,860 51,468 784,538 

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES   

Demand and savings deposits $ 17,453,569 $ 17,453,569 $ — $ — $ 17,453,569 

Brokered deposits 1,152,427 144,960 1,006,416 — 1,151,376 

Time deposits 3,135,954 — 3,123,531 — 3,123,531 

Accrued interest payable 26,362 26,362 — — 26,362 

Federal Home Loan Bank advances 900,000 903,194 — — 903,194 

Senior debt and subordinated debt 535,566 — 420,502 — 420,502 

Other borrowings 860,474 859,662 750 — 860,412 

Other liabilities 463,030 166,352 281,581 15,097 463,030 
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December 31, 2023

Estimated Fair Value

Carrying Amount Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

(dollars in thousands)

FINANCIAL ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents $ 549,710 $ 549,710 $ — $ — $ 549,710 

FRB and FHLB stock 124,405 — 124,405 — 124,405 

Loans held for sale 15,158 — 15,158 — 15,158 

AFS securities 2,398,352 42,161 2,356,191 — 2,398,352 

HTM securities 1,267,922 — 1,072,207 — 1,072,207 

Loans, net 21,057,690 — — 19,930,560 19,930,560 

Accrued interest receivable 107,972 107,972 — — 107,972 

Other assets 661,067 452,935 157,540 50,592 661,067 

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Demand and savings deposits $ 17,653,690 $ 17,653,690 $ — $ — $ 17,653,690 

Brokered deposits 1,144,692 145,987 999,392 — 1,145,379 

Time deposits 2,739,241 — 2,714,709 — 2,714,709 

Accrued interest payable 35,083 35,083 — — 35,083 

Federal funds purchased 240,000 240,000 — — 240,000 

Federal Home Loan Bank advances 1,100,000 1,094,013 — — 1,094,013 

Senior debt and subordinated debt 535,384 — 463,270 — 463,270 

Other borrowings 612,142 611,269 837 — 612,106 

Other liabilities 429,046 165,635 246,157 17,254 429,046 

Fair values of financial instruments are significantly affected by the assumptions used, principally the timing of future cash flows and discount rates.
Because assumptions are inherently subjective in nature, the estimated fair values cannot be substantiated by comparison to independent market quotes
and, in many cases, the estimated fair values could not necessarily be realized in an immediate sale or settlement of the instrument. The aggregate fair
value amounts presented do not necessarily represent management’s estimate of the underlying value of the Corporation.

For short-term financial instruments, defined as those with remaining maturities of 90 days or less, and excluding those recorded at fair value on the
Corporation's consolidated balance sheets, book value was considered to be a reasonable estimate of fair value.

The following instruments are predominantly short-term:

Assets   Liabilities

Cash and cash equivalents   Demand and savings deposits

Accrued interest receivable   Other borrowings

  Accrued interest payable

FRB and FHLB stock represent restricted investments and are carried at cost on the consolidated balance sheets, which is a reasonable estimate of fair
value.

As of March 31, 2024, fair values for loans and time deposits were estimated by discounting future cash flows using the current rates, as adjusted for
liquidity considerations, at which similar loans would be made to borrowers and similar deposits would be issued to customers for the same remaining
maturities. Fair values of loans also include estimated credit losses that would be assumed in a market transaction, which represents estimated exit
prices.

Brokered deposits consist of demand and saving deposits, which are classified as Level 1, and time deposits, which are classified as Level 2. The fair
value of these deposits is determined in a manner consistent with the respective type of deposits discussed above.
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NOTE 9 – Net Income Per Share

Basic net income per share is calculated as net income available to common shareholders divided by the weighted average number of shares
outstanding.

Diluted net income per share is calculated as net income available to common shareholders divided by the weighted average number of shares
outstanding plus the incremental number of shares added as a result of converting common stock equivalents, calculated using the treasury stock
method. The Corporation's common stock equivalents consist of outstanding stock options, restricted stock, RSUs, and PSUs. PSUs are required to be
included in weighted average diluted shares outstanding if performance measures, as defined in each PSU award agreement, are met as of the end of
the period.

A reconciliation of weighted average shares outstanding used to calculate basic and diluted net income per share follows (in thousands, except per share
data):

Three months ended March 31

 2024 2023

Weighted average shares outstanding (basic) 162,706 166,605 

Impact of common stock equivalents 1,814 1,796 

Weighted average shares outstanding (diluted) 164,520 168,401 

Per share:

Basic $ 0.36 $ 0.39 

Diluted 0.36 0.39 

NOTE 10 – Stock-Based Compensation

The Corporation grants equity awards to employees in the form of stock options, restricted stock, RSUs or PSUs under its Employee Equity Plan. In
addition, employees may purchase stock under the Corporation's Employee Stock Purchase Plan. The fair value of equity awards granted to employees
is recognized as compensation expense over the period during which employees are required to provide service in exchange for such awards.

The Corporation also grants equity awards to non-employee members of its board of directors and the Bank board of directors under the Directors’ Plan.
Under the Directors’ Plan, the Corporation can grant equity awards to non-employee Corporation and Bank directors in the form of restricted stock, RSUs
or common stock. Recent grants of equity awards under the Directors’ Plan have been limited to RSUs.

As of March 31, 2024, the Employee Equity Plan had approximately 4.5 million shares reserved for future grants through 2032, and the Directors’ Plan
had approximately 395,000 shares reserved for future grants through 2033.

The following table presents compensation expense and the related tax benefits for equity awards recognized in the consolidated statements of income:

Three months ended March 31

 2024 2023

 (dollars in thousands)

Compensation expense $ 667 $ 1,668 

Tax benefit (144) (362)

Total stock-based compensation, net of tax $ 523 $ 1,306 
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NOTE 11 – Employee Benefit Plans

The net periodic pension cost for the Pension Plan consisted of the following components:

Three months ended March 31

 2024 2023

 (dollars in thousands)

Interest cost $ 790 $ 856 

Expected return on plan assets (976) (877)

Net amortization and deferral — 80 

Net periodic pension cost $ (186) $ 59 

The components of the net benefit for the Postretirement Plan consisted of the following components:

Three months ended March 31

 2024 2023

 (dollars in thousands)

Interest cost $ 10 $ 13 

Net accretion and deferral (136) (136)

Net periodic benefit $ (126) $ (123)

In connection with the Merger, the Corporation assumed the obligations of Prudential Bancorp under a multiemployer defined benefit pension plan that
had previously been closed to new Prudential Bancorp participants.

The Corporation recognizes the funded status of its Pension Plan and Postretirement Plan on the consolidated balance sheets and recognizes the
change in that funded status through OCI.

NOTE 12 – Commitments and Contingencies

Commitments

The Corporation is a party to financial instruments with OBS risk in the normal course of business to meet the financing needs of its borrowers or obligors.

Commitments to extend credit are agreements to lend to a borrower or obligor as long as there is no violation of any condition established in the contract.
Commitments generally have fixed expiration dates or other termination clauses and may require payment of a fee by the borrower or obligor. Since a
portion of the commitments is expected to expire without being drawn upon, the total commitment amounts do not necessarily represent future cash
requirements. The Corporation evaluates each borrower's or obligor's creditworthiness on a case-by-case basis. The amount of collateral, if any, obtained
upon an extension of credit is based on management's credit evaluation of the borrower or obligor. Collateral held varies but may include accounts
receivable, inventory, property, equipment and income-producing commercial properties.

Standby letters of credit are conditional commitments issued to guarantee the financial or performance obligation of a borrower or obligor to a third party.
Commercial letters of credit are conditional commitments issued to facilitate foreign and domestic trade transactions for borrowers or obligors. The credit
risk involved in issuing letters of credit is similar to that involved in extending loan facilities. These obligations are underwritten consistent with commercial
lending standards. The maximum exposure to loss for standby and commercial letters of credit is equal to the contractual (or notional) amount of the
instruments.
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The following table presents the Corporation's commitments to extend credit and letters of credit:

March 31,
2024 December 31, 2023

 (dollars in thousands)

Commitments to extend credit $ 8,778,133 $ 8,790,511 

Standby letters of credit 249,594 264,440 

Commercial letters of credit 64,078 67,396 

Residential Lending

The Corporation originates and sells residential mortgages to secondary market investors. The Corporation provides customary representations and
warranties to secondary market investors that specify, among other things, that the loans have been underwritten to the standards of the secondary
market investor. The Corporation may be required to repurchase specific loans or reimburse the investor for a credit loss incurred on a sold loan if it is
determined that the representations and warranties have not been met. Under some agreements with secondary market investors, the Corporation may
have additional credit exposure beyond customary representations and warranties, based on the specific terms of those agreements.

The Corporation maintains a reserve for estimated losses related to loans sold to investors. As of March 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023, the total
reserve for losses on residential mortgage loans sold was $2.0 million and $1.8 million, respectively, including reserves for both representation and
warranty and credit loss exposures. In addition, a component of ACL - OBS credit exposures of $1.9 million and $2.7 million, as of March 31, 2024 and
December 31, 2023, respectively, related to additional credit exposures for potential loan repurchases.

Legal Proceedings

The Corporation is involved in various pending and threatened claims and other legal proceedings in the ordinary course of its business activities. The
Corporation evaluates the possible impact of these matters, taking into consideration the most recent information available. A loss reserve is established
for those matters for which the Corporation believes a loss is both probable and reasonably estimable. Once established, the reserve is adjusted as
appropriate to reflect any subsequent developments. Actual losses with respect to any such matter may be more or less than the amount estimated by
the Corporation. For matters where a loss is not probable, or the amount of the loss cannot be reasonably estimated by the Corporation, no loss reserve
is established.

In addition, from time to time, the Corporation is involved in investigations or other forms of regulatory or governmental inquiry covering a range of
possible issues and, in some cases, these may be part of similar reviews of the specified activities of other companies. These inquiries or investigations
could lead to administrative, civil or criminal proceedings involving the Corporation, and could result in fines, penalties, restitution, other types of
sanctions, or the need for the Corporation to undertake remedial actions, or to alter its business, financial or accounting practices. The Corporation's
practice is to cooperate fully with regulatory and governmental inquiries and investigations.

As of the date of this report, the Corporation believes that any liabilities, individually or in the aggregate, that may result from the final outcomes of
pending legal proceedings, or regulatory or governmental inquiries or investigations, will not have a material adverse effect on the financial condition of
the Corporation. However, legal proceedings, inquiries and investigations are often unpredictable, and it is possible that the ultimate resolution of any
such matters, if unfavorable, may be material to the Corporation's results of operations in any future period, depending, in part, upon the size of the loss
or liability imposed and the operating results for the period, and could have a material adverse effect on the Corporation's business. In addition,
regardless of the ultimate outcome of any such legal proceeding, inquiry or investigation, any such matter could cause the Corporation to incur additional
expenses, which could be significant, and possibly material, to the Corporation's results of operations in any future period.
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NOTE 13 – Subsequent Events

Acquisition of Substantially all of the Assets and Assumption of Substantially all of the Deposits and Certain Liabilities of Republic First Bank from the
FDIC

On April 26, 2024, Fulton Bank acquired substantially all of the assets and assumed substantially all of the deposits and certain liabilities of Republic First
Bank from the FDIC, as receiver for Republic First Bank. As part of the transaction, the Corporation acquired approximately $5.2 billion of assets of
Republic First Bank, consisting of approximately $0.2 billion of cash, approximately $ 2.0 billion of investments (purchased at fair value), approximately
$2.9 billion of loans, and approximately $ 0.1 billion of other assets. The Corporation also received approximately $ 0.8 billion of cash from the FDIC in
connection with the Republic First Transaction. The Corporation assumed approximately $5.6 billion of total liabilities of Republic First Bank, including
approximately $4.2 billion of deposits, approximately $ 1.3 billion of borrowings, and approximately $ 0.1 billion of other liabilities. The Corporation did not
enter into a loss sharing arrangement with the FDIC in connection with the Republic First Transaction. Fulton Bank also has the option to purchase the
Republic First Bank branches and office locations. Following the closing of the Republic First Transaction, the Corporation sold all of the acquired
investment securities, and used $1.4 billion of the cash received from the sale of the investment securities to repay the assumed borrowings in their
entirety and $250.0 million of the Corporation's wholesale funding sources.

The description of the Republic First Transaction and the value of the acquired assets and assumed liabilities are preliminary estimates based on
information currently available to the Corporation and are subject to change. Information related to the assets and liabilities of Republic First Bank is
based on information for Republic First Bank provided by the FDIC.

As a result of the Republic First Transaction, the Corporation enhanced its presence in Philadelphia, Pennsylvania and New Jersey.

In connection with the Republic First Transaction, Fulton Bank made a $ 5.0 million donation to the Fulton Forward Foundation to provide additional
impact grants to nonprofit community organizations across the region that share Fulton’s vision of advancing economic empowerment, particularly in
underserved communities.

Common Stock Offering

On May 1, 2024, the Corporation completed its previously announced underwritten public offering of 19,166,667 shares of its common stock at a price to
the public of $15.00 per share, before underwriting discounts, which included 2,500,000 shares of common stock upon the exercise in full by the
underwriters of their over-allotment option to purchase additional shares of common stock. The net proceeds to the Corporation from the offering before
deducting transaction expenses were approximately $273.5 million.

The Corporation intends to use the net proceeds of the offering for general corporate purposes, including to support new opportunities in connection with
the Republic First Transaction.
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Item 2. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

This Management's Discussion relates to the Corporation, a financial holding company registered under the BHCA and corporation incorporated under
the laws of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, and its wholly owned subsidiaries. This Management's Discussion should be read in conjunction with the
consolidated financial statements and other financial information presented in this report.

OVERVIEW

The Corporation is a financial holding company, which, through its wholly-owned banking subsidiary, provides a full range of retail and commercial
financial services in Pennsylvania, Delaware, Maryland, New Jersey and Virginia.

The Corporation generates the majority of its revenue through net interest income, or the difference between interest earned on loans and investments
and interest paid on deposits and borrowings. Growth in net interest income is dependent upon balance sheet growth and maintaining or increasing the
NIM, which is FTE net interest income as a percentage of average interest-earning assets. The Corporation also generates revenue through fees earned
on the various services and products offered to its customers and through gains on sales of assets, such as loans, investments and properties. Offsetting
these revenue sources are provisions for credit losses on loans and OBS credit risks, non-interest expenses and income taxes.

The following table presents a summary of the Corporation's earnings and selected performance ratios:

Three months ended March 31

 2024 2023

(dollars in thousands, except per share data)

Net income $ 61,941 $ 68,314

Net income available to common shareholders 59,379 65,752

Net income available to common shareholders (diluted) 0.36 0.39

Operating net income available to common shareholders per share 0.40 0.39

Return on average assets, annualized 0.91 % 1.03 %

Operating return on average assets, annualized 1.00 % 1.04 %

Return on average common shareholders' equity, annualized 9.28 % 11.02 %

Operating return on average common shareholders' equity (tangible), annualized 13.08 % 14.46 %

Net interest margin 3.32 % 3.53 %

Efficiency ratio 63.2 % 58.5 %

Non-performing assets to total assets 0.57 % 0.62 %

Net charge-offs (recoveries) to average loans 0.16 % 0.27 %

 Ratio represents a financial measure derived by methods other than GAAP. See reconciliation of this non-GAAP financial measure to the most directly

comparable GAAP measure under the "Supplemental Reporting of Non-GAAP Based Financial Measures" section of Management's Discussion.

 Presented on a FTE basis, using a 21% federal tax rate and statutory interest expense disallowances.

Acquisition of Substantially all of the Assets and Assumption of Substantially all of the Deposits and Certain Liabilities of Republic First Bank from the
FDIC

On April 26, 2024, Fulton Bank acquired substantially all of the assets and assumed substantially all of the deposits and certain liabilities of Republic First
Bank from the FDIC, as receiver for Republic First Bank. As part of the transaction, the Corporation acquired approximately $5.2 billion of assets of
Republic First Bank and assumed approximately $5.6 billion of liabilities of Republic First Bank, The Corporation received approximately $0.8 billion of
cash from the FDIC in connection with the Republic First Transaction.

The description of the Republic First Transaction and the value of the acquired assets and assumed liabilities are preliminary estimates based on
information currently available to the Corporation and are subject to change. Information related to the assets and liabilities of Republic First Bank is
based on information for Republic First Bank provided by the FDIC.

(1)

(1)

(1)

(2)

(1)

(1)

(2)
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The consolidated financial statements contained in this report do not include the impact of the Republic First Transaction for the periods presented.

See "Note 13 - Subsequent Events" in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements in "Item 1. Financial Statements."

Common Stock Offering

On May 1, 2024, the Corporation completed its previously announced underwritten public offering of 19,166,667 shares of its common stock at a price to
the public of $15.00 per share, before underwriting discounts, which included 2,500,000 shares of common stock upon the exercise in full by the
underwriters of their over-allotment option to purchase additional shares of common stock. The net proceeds to the Corporation from the offering before
deducting transaction expenses were approximately $273.5 million.

The Corporation intends to use the net proceeds of the offering for general corporate purposes, including to support new opportunities in connection with
the Republic First Transaction.

Financial Highlights

Following is a summary of the financial highlights for the three months ended March 31, 2024:

• Net Income Available to Common Shareholders and Net Income Per Share  - Net income available to common shareholders was  $59.4 million for
the three months ended March 31, 2024, a $6.4 million decrease compared to $65.8 million for the same period in 2023. Diluted net income
available to common shareholders per share was $0.36 for the three months ended March 31, 2024, a $0.03 decrease compared to the same
period in 2023.

• Net Interest Income - Net interest income was $206.9 million for the three months ended March 31, 2024, a decrease of $8.7 million, or 4.0%,
compared to the same period in 2023. The decrease was primarily driven by rising interest rates resulting in an increase in interest expense from
interest-bearing deposits, partially offset by an increase in interest income on loans.

• Net Interest Margin - For the three months ended March 31, 2024, NIM decreased to 3.32%, or 21 bps, compared to the same period in
2023, driven by a 95 bps increase in the cost of interest-bearing liabilities and noninterest-bearing deposits, partially offset by a 69 bps
increase in the yield on net loans, a 11 bps increase in the yield on investment securities and a 236 bps increase in the yield on other
interest-earning assets.

• Net Loans - Average net loans increased $906.9 million, or 4.4%, for the three months ended March 31, 2024 compared to the same
period in 2023. The increase in average net loans was largely driven by increases in average residential mortgage loans and average
commercial mortgage loans of $563.0 million and $445.0 million, respectively.

• Deposits - Average deposits increased $804.4 million, or 3.9%, for the three months ended March 31, 2024 compared to the same
period in 2023. The increase in average deposits was largely due to increases in average time deposits of $1.3 billion, average brokered
deposits of $643.7 million, average interest-bearing demand deposits of $270.2 million and average savings and money market deposits
of $199.8 million, partially offset by a decrease in average noninterest-bearing demand deposits of $1.6 billion.

• Borrowings and Other Interest-Bearing Liabilities  - Average borrowings and other interest-bearing liabilities decreased $450.3 million, or
14.7%, for the three months ended March 31, 2024 compared to the same period in 2023. The decrease in borrowings and other
interest-bearing liabilities was primarily due to decreases in average FHLB advances and Federal funds purchased of $358.7 million and
$331.5 million, respectively.

• Asset Quality - Non-performing assets increased $2.2 million, or 1.4%, as of March 31, 2024 compared to December 31, 2023, and were 0.57%
and 0.56% of total assets as of those dates, respectively. Annualized net charge-offs to average loans outstanding was 0.16% for the three
months ended March 31, 2024, compared to annualized net charge-offs to average loans outstanding of 0.27% for the same period in 2023. The
provision for credit losses was $10.9 million for the three months ended March 31, 2024, compared to $24.5 million in the same period in 2023.
Net charge-offs of $14.0 million for the three months ended March 31, 2023 included a charge-off of $13.3 million for a commercial office loan.
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• Non-interest Income  - Compared to the three months ended March 31, 2023, non-interest income before investment securities gains (losses)
increased $5.4 million, or 10.5%, from $51.7 million. The increase in non-interest income was primarily due to increases of $2.1 million in wealth
management revenues due to an increase in assets under management, $1.3 million in commercial banking income, $1.1 million in mortgage
banking income and $0.5 million in consumer banking income. The increase in commercial banking income was primarily due to increases of
$0.8 million in cash management fee income and $0.3 million in gains on sale from SBA loans, reflected in other commercial banking income.
The increase in mortgage banking income was driven by higher loan sale volumes and higher spreads.

• Non-interest Expense  - Non-interest expense increased $18.0 million, or 11.3%, for the three months ended March 31, 2024 compared to the
same period in 2023. Excluding FultonFirst implementation costs and loss on asset disposals of $6.3 million, non-interest expense increased
$11.7 million, or 7.3%, compared to the same period in 2023. The increase was primarily due to increases of $6.0 million in salaries and
employee benefits expense, $1.9 million in data processing and software expense primarily due to technology investments made in 2023, $1.7
million in net occupancy expense driven by snow removal costs, $1.3 million in FDIC insurance expense, which includes a $1.0 million special
assessment charge to recover the loss to the Deposit Insurance Fund in connection with certain bank closures in 2023, and $0.7 million in other
outside services expense. The $6.0 million increase in salaries and benefits expense was primarily due to merit increases and healthcare costs.

• Income Taxes - The Corporation's ETR was 18.0% for the three months ended March 31, 2024 compared to 18.5% for the full-year of 2023. The
ETR is generally lower than the federal statutory rate of 21% due to tax-exempt interest income earned on loans, investments in tax-free
municipal securities and investments in community development projects that generate tax credits under various programs.

Critical Accounting Policies

The Corporation's accounting policies are fundamental to understanding Management’s Discussion. Critical policies are those that the Corporation
considers to be most important to the presentation of its financial condition and results of operations, because they require management's most difficult
judgments as a result of the need to make estimates about the effects of matters that are inherently uncertain.

The Corporation's critical accounting policies are described in Part II, Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations in the Corporation’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2023.

Supplemental Reporting of Non-GAAP Based Financial Measures

This Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q contains supplemental financial information, as detailed below, that has been derived by methods other than GAAP.
The Corporation has presented these non-GAAP financial measures because it believes that these measures provide useful and comparative information
to assess trends in the Corporation's results of operations. Presentation of these non-GAAP financial measures is consistent with how the Corporation
evaluates its performance internally and these non-GAAP financial measures are frequently used by securities analysts, investors and other interested
parties in the evaluation of companies in the Corporation's industry. Management believes that these non-GAAP financial measures, in addition to GAAP
measures, are also useful to investors to evaluate the Corporation's results. Investors should recognize that the Corporation's presentation of these non-
GAAP financial measures might not be comparable to similarly titled measures of other companies. These non-GAAP financial measures should not be
considered a substitute for GAAP basis measures, and the Corporation strongly encourages a review of its consolidated financial statements in their
entirety.
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Reconciliations of these non-GAAP financial measures to the most directly comparable GAAP measure follow:

Three months ended March 31

2024 2023

(dollars in thousands, except per share data and share
data)

Operating net income available to common shareholders

Net income available to common shareholders $ 59,379 $ 65,752

Plus: Core deposit intangible amortization 441 514

Plus: Interest rate derivative transition valuation (151) —

Plus: FDIC special assessment 956 —

Plus: FultonFirst implementation and asset disposals 6,329 —

Less: Tax impact of adjustments (1,591) (108)

Operating net income available to common shareholders (numerator) $ 65,363 $ 66,158

Weighted average shares (diluted) (denominator) 164,520 168,401

Operating net income available to common shareholders, per share (diluted) $ 0.40 $ 0.39

Operating return on average assets, annualized

Net income $ 61,941 $ 68,314

Plus: Core deposit intangible amortization 441 514

Plus: Interest rate derivative transition valuation (151) —

Plus: FDIC special assessment 956 —

Plus: FultonFirst implementation and asset disposals 6,329 —

Less: Tax impact of adjustments (1,591) (108)

Operating net income (numerator) $ 67,925 $ 68,720

Total average assets 27,427,626 26,900,653

Less: Average net core deposit intangible (4,666) (6,937)

     Total operating average assets $ 27,422,960 $ 26,893,716

Operating return on average assets 1.00 % 1.04 %

(1)

(1)
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Three months ended March 31

2024 2023

(dollars in thousands, except per share data and share
data)

Operating return on average common shareholders' equity (tangible), annualized

Net income available to common shareholders $ 59,379 $ 65,752

Plus: Intangible amortization 573 674 

Plus: Interest rate derivative transition valuation (151) —

Plus: FDIC special assessment 956 —

Plus: FultonFirst implementation and asset disposals 6,329 —

Less: Tax impact of adjustments (1,618) (142)

Adjusted net income available to common shareholders (numerator) $ 65,468 $ 66,284

Average shareholders' equity 2,766,945 $ 2,613,316

Less: Average preferred stock (192,878) (192,878)

Less: Average goodwill and intangible assets (560,393) (561,744)

Average tangible common shareholders' equity (denominator) $ 2,013,674 $ 1,858,694

Operating return on average common shareholders' equity (tangible) 13.08 % 14.46 %

Efficiency ratio

Non-interest expense $ 177,600 $ 159,616

Less: Intangible amortization (573) (674)

Less: FDIC special assessment (956) —

Less: FultonFirst implementation and asset disposals (6,329) —

Non-interest expense (numerator) $ 169,742 $ 158,942

Net interest income $ 206,937 $ 215,587

Tax equivalent adjustment 4,592 4,414

Plus: Total non-interest income 57,140 51,753

Plus: Interest rate derivative transition valuation (151) —

Less: Investment securities (gains) losses, net — (23)

Total revenue (denominator) $ 268,518 $ 271,731

Efficiency ratio 63.2 % 58.5 %

 Resulting from the reference rate transition from LIBOR to SOFR in the Corporation's commercial customer interest rate swap program.

(1)

(1)

(1)

44



RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Three months ended March 31, 2024 compared to the three months ended March 31, 2023

Net Interest Income

FTE net interest income was $211.5 million for the three months ended March 31, 2024, a decrease of $8.5 million, compared to $220.0 million for the
same period in 2023. For the three months ended March 31, 2024, NIM decreased to 3.32%, or 21 bps, compared to the same period in 2023. The
Corporation manages the risk associated with changes in interest rates through the techniques described within Item 3, "Quantitative and Qualitative
Disclosures About Market Risk" in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q. The following table provides a comparative average balance sheet and net
interest income analysis for those periods. Interest income and yields are presented on an FTE basis, using a 21% federal tax rate, and statutory interest
expense disallowances. The discussion following this table is based on these taxable-equivalent amounts.

 Three months ended March 31

 2024 2023

Average
Balance Interest 

Yield/
Rate

Average

Balance Interest 

Yield/

Rate

ASSETS (dollars in thousands)

Interest-earning assets:

Net loans $ 21,370,033 $ 313,882 5.90 % $ 20,463,096 $ 263,065 5.21 %

   Investment securities 3,983,753 27,048 2.71 4,289,643 27,522 2.60 

Other interest-earning assets 249,079 3,328 5.36 493,130 3,648 3.00 

Total interest-earning assets 25,602,865 344,258 5.40 25,245,869 294,235 4.73 

Noninterest-earning assets:

Cash and due from banks 282,895 141,254 

Premises and equipment 223,375 223,025 

Other assets 1,614,746 1,563,806 

Less: ACL - loans (296,255) (273,301)

Total Assets $ 27,427,626 $ 26,900,653 

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

Interest-bearing liabilities:

Demand deposits $ 5,596,725 $ 20,500 1.47 % $ 5,326,566 $ 8,455 0.64 %

Savings and money market deposits 6,669,228 38,797 2.34 6,469,468 20,535 1.29 

Brokered deposits 1,083,382 14,655 5.44 439,670 5,173 4.77 

Time deposits 2,968,344 29,622 4.01 1,696,878 7,458 1.78 

Total interest-bearing deposits 16,317,679 103,574 2.55 13,932,582 41,621 1.21 

Borrowings and other interest-bearing liabilities 2,608,376 29,155 4.46 3,058,684 32,613 4.32 

Total interest-bearing liabilities 18,926,055 132,729 2.82 16,991,266 74,234 1.78 

Noninterest-bearing liabilities:

Demand deposits 5,061,075 6,641,741 

Other noninterest-bearing liabilities 673,551 654,330 

Total Liabilities 24,660,681 24,287,337 

Total Deposits 21,378,754 1.95 % 20,574,323 0.82 %

Total interest-bearing liabilities and non-interest bearing deposits 23,987,130 2.22 % 23,633,007 1.27 %

Shareholders’ equity 2,766,945 2,613,316 

Total Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity $ 27,427,626 $ 26,900,653 

Net interest income/FTE NIM 211,529 3.32 % 220,001 3.53 %

Tax equivalent adjustment (4,592) (4,414)

Net interest income $ 206,937 $ 215,587 

 Presented on a fully taxable-equivalent basis using a 21% federal tax rate and statutory interest expense disallowances.

Average balance includes non-performing loans.

 Balances include amortized historical cost for AFS. The related unrealized holding gains (losses) are included in other assets.

 ACL - loans relates to the ACL specifically for net loans and does not include the ACL for OBS credit exposures, which is included in other liabilities.

(1) (1)

(2)

(3)

(4)

(1)

(2) 

(3)

(4)
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The following table summarizes the changes in FTE interest income and interest expense resulting from changes in average balances (volume) and
changes in yields and rates for the three months ended March 31, 2024 in comparison to the same period in 2023:

 

2024 vs. 2023
Increase (Decrease) due

to change in

 Volume Yield/Rate Net

 (dollars in thousands)

FTE Interest income on:

Net loans $ 12,700 $ 38,117 $ 50,817 

Investment securities (1,757) 1,283 (474)

Other interest-earning assets (2,358) 2,038 (320)

Total interest income $ 8,585 $ 41,438 $ 50,023 

Interest expense on:

Demand deposits $ 453 $ 11,592 $ 12,045 

Savings and money market deposits 668 17,594 18,262 

Brokered deposits 8,652 830 9,482 

Time deposits 8,295 13,869 22,164 

Borrowings and other interest-bearing liabilities (4,579) 1,121 (3,458)

Total interest expense $ 13,489 $ 45,006 $ 58,495 

 Average balance includes non-performing loans.

Note: Changes which are partially attributable to both volume and rate are allocated to the volume and rate components presented above based on the percentage of direct changes

that are attributable to each component.

Compared to the first quarter of 2023, FTE total interest income for the first quarter of 2024 increased $50.0 million, or 17.0%, primarily due to an
increase of $41.4 million attributable to changes in yield, of which $38.1 million related to net loans. The yield on average interest-earning assets
increased 67 bps in the first quarter of 2024 compared to the same period in 2023. The increase due to changes in volume was due to an increase in
average net loans, partially offset by decreases in average other interest-earning assets and average investment securities.

In the first quarter of 2024, interest expense increased $58.5 million compared to the first quarter of 2023, primarily driven by an increase in the rate on
interest-bearing liabilities resulting in a $45.0 million increase in interest expense. The increase in interest expense attributable to rate was driven by
increases in the rates on savings and money market deposits, time deposits and demand deposits. The increase in interest expense attributable to
volume was primarily due to increases in average brokered deposits and average time deposits, partially offset by a decrease in average borrowings and
other interest-bearing liabilities.

Average loans and average FTE yields, by type, are summarized in the following table:

Three months ended March 31

 2024 2023 Increase (Decrease)

 Balance Yield Balance Yield $ %

 (dollars in thousands)

Real estate – commercial mortgage $ 8,166,018 6.34 % $ 7,720,975 5.55 % $ 445,043 5.8 %

Commercial and industrial 4,517,179 6.67 4,565,923 5.75 (48,744) (1.1)

Real estate – residential mortgage 5,353,905 3.96 4,790,868 3.58 563,037 11.8 

Real estate – home equity 1,039,321 7.34 1,086,032 6.37 (46,711) (4.3)

Real estate – construction 1,240,640 7.44 1,276,145 6.29 (35,505) (2.8)

Consumer 721,523 6.45 721,248 5.38 275 — 

Leases and other loans 331,447 4.69 301,905 4.09 29,542 9.8 

Total loans $ 21,370,033 5.90 % $ 20,463,096 5.21 % $ 906,937 4.4 %

 Consists of equipment lease financing, overdrafts and net origination fees and costs.

During the first quarter of 2024, average loans increased $906.9 million, or 4.4%, compared to the same period in 2023. The increase in average loans
was largely driven by increases in average residential mortgage loans and average commercial

(1)

(1)

(1)

(1)
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mortgage loans of $563.0 million and $445.0 million, respectively. The yield on total loans increased 69 bps to 5.90% for the first quarter of 2024,
compared to 5.21% for the same period in 2023, primarily due to rising interest rates.

Average deposits and average interest rates, by type, are summarized in the following table:

Three months ended March 31

 2024 2023 Increase (Decrease)

 Balance Rate Balance Rate $ %

 (dollars in thousands)

Noninterest-bearing demand $ 5,061,075 — % $ 6,641,741 — % $ (1,580,666) (23.8)%

Interest-bearing demand 5,596,725 1.47 5,326,566 0.64 270,159 5.1 

Savings and money market deposits 6,669,228 2.34 6,469,468 1.29 199,760 3.1 

Total demand deposits and savings and
money market deposits 17,327,028 1.38 18,437,775 0.64 (1,110,747) (6.0)

Brokered deposits 1,083,382 5.44 439,670 4.77 643,712 1.5 

Time deposits 2,968,344 4.01 1,696,878 1.78 1,271,466 74.9 

Total deposits $ 21,378,754 1.95 % $ 20,574,323 0.82 % $ 804,431 3.9 %

The cost of deposits increased 113 bps, to 1.95%, for the first quarter of 2024 compared to 0.82% for the same period in 2023, primarily due to an
increase in rates and a change in the mix of deposits. Average deposits increased $804.4 million during the first quarter of 2024 compared to the same
period in 2023, primarily due to increases in average time deposits and average brokered deposits of $1.3 billion and $643.7 million, respectively, partially
offset by a decrease in average noninterest-bearing demand deposits of $1.6 billion.

Average borrowings and interest rates, by type, are summarized in the following table:

Three months ended March 31

 2024 2023 Increase (Decrease)

 Balance Rate Balance Rate $ %

Borrowings and other interest-bearing liabilities: (dollars in thousands)

Federal funds purchased $ 173,659 5.44 % $ 505,142 4.85 % $ (331,483) (65.6)%

Federal Home Loan Bank advances 902,890 4.80 1,261,589 4.97 (358,699) (28.4)

Senior debt and subordinated debt 535,479 3.96 539,726 4.02 (4,247) (0.8)

Other borrowings and other interest-bearing
liabilities 996,348 4.10 752,227 3.11 244,121 32.5 

Total borrowings and other interest-bearing
liabilities $ 2,608,376 4.46 % $ 3,058,684 4.32 % $ (450,308) (14.7)%

 Includes repurchase agreements, short-term promissory notes, capital leases and collateral liabilities.

Average borrowings and other interest-bearing liabilities decreased $450.3 million in the first quarter of 2024 compared to the same period in 2023,
primarily as a result of an increase in average total deposits. The decrease in average borrowings and other interest-bearing liabilities in the first quarter
of 2024 compared to the first quarter of 2023 was primarily due to decreases in average FHLB advances and average Federal funds purchased of $358.7
million and $331.5 million, respectively, partially offset by an increase in average other borrowings and other interest-bearing liabilities of $244.1 million.

Provision for Credit Losses

The provision for credit losses was $10.9 million for the first quarter of 2024 compared to a provision of $24.5 million for the same period in 2023. The
provision for credit losses of $10.9 million recorded in the first quarter of 2024 was primarily due to net charge-offs of $8.6 million and loan growth.

(1)

(1)
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Non-Interest Income

The following table presents the components of non-interest income:

 Three months ended March 31 Increase (Decrease)

 2024 2023 $ %

 (dollars in thousands)

Wealth management $ 20,155 $ 18,062 $ 2,093 11.6 %

Commercial banking:

   Merchant and card 6,808 6,834 (26) N/M

   Cash management 6,305 5,515 790 14.3 

   Capital markets 2,341 2,344 (3) N/M

   Other commercial banking 3,375 2,820 555 19.7 

Total commercial banking 18,829 17,513 1,316 7.5 

Consumer banking:

  Card 6,628 6,243 385 6.2 

  Overdraft 2,786 2,733 53 1.9 

  Other consumer banking 2,254 2,241 13 0.6 

Total consumer banking 11,668 11,217 451 4.0 

Mortgage banking 3,090 1,970 1,120 56.9 

Other 3,398 2,968 430 14.5 

Non-interest income before investment securities gains 57,140 51,730 5,410 10.5 

Investment securities gains (losses), net — 23 (23) (100.0)

Total Non-Interest Income $ 57,140 $ 51,753 $ 5,387 10.4 %

Compared to the three months ended March 31, 2023, non-interest income before investment securities gains (losses) increased $5.4 million, or 10.5%,
from $51.7 million. The increase in non-interest income was primarily due to increases of $2.1 million in wealth management revenues due to an increase
in assets under management, $1.3 million in commercial banking income, $1.1 million in mortgage banking income and $0.5 million in consumer banking
income. The increase in commercial banking income was primarily due to increases of $0.8 million in cash management fee income and $0.3 million in
gains on sale from SBA loans, reflected in other commercial banking income. The increase in mortgage banking income was driven by higher loan sale
volumes and higher spreads.
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Non-Interest Expense

The following table presents the components of non-interest expense:

 Three months ended March 31 Increase (Decrease)

 2024 2023 $ %

 (dollars in thousands)

Salaries and employee benefits $ 95,240 $ 89,283 $ 5,957 6.7 %

Data processing and software 17,661 15,796 1,865 11.8 

Net occupancy 16,149 14,438 1,711 11.9 

Other outside services 10,809 10,126 683 6.7 

FDIC insurance 6,104 4,795 1,309 27.3 

Equipment 4,040 3,389 651 19.2 

Professional fees 2,088 2,392 (304) (12.7)

Marketing 1,912 1,886 26 1.4 

Intangible amortization 573 674 (101) (15.0)

Other 16,695 16,837 (142) (0.8)

Subtotal 171,271 159,616 11,655 7.3 

FultonFirst implementation and asset disposals 6,329 — 6,329 N/M

Total non-interest expense $ 177,600 $ 159,616 $ 17,984 11.3 %

Non-interest expense increased $18.0 million, or 11.3%, for the three months ended March 31, 2024 compared to the same period in 2023. Excluding
FultonFirst implementation costs and loss on asset disposals of $6.3 million, non-interest expense increased $11.7 million, or 7.3%, compared to the
same period in 2023. The increase was primarily due to increases of $6.0 million in salaries and employee benefits expense, $1.9 million in data
processing and software expense primarily due to technology investments made in 2023, $1.7 million in net occupancy expense driven by snow removal
costs, $1.3 million in FDIC insurance expense, which includes a $1.0 million special assessment charge to recover the loss to the Deposit Insurance
Fund in connection with certain bank closures in 2023, and $0.7 million in other outside services expense. The $6.0 million increase in salaries and
benefits expense was primarily due to merit increases and healthcare costs.

FultonFirst initiative expenses of $6.3 million for the three months ended March 31, 2024 included $0.2 million in severance expense (reflected in salaries
and employee benefits on the Consolidated Statement of Income), $2.5 million in consulting services expense (reflected in other outside services on the
Consolidated Statement of Income) and loss on disposals of assets of $3.6 million (reflected in other non-interest expense on the Consolidated
Statement of Income).

Income Taxes

Income tax expense for the three months ended March 31, 2024 was $13.6 million, a $1.3 million decrease from $14.9 million for the same period in
2023. The Corporation's ETR was 18.0% for the three months ended March 31, 2024 compared to 18.5% for the full year in 2023.
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FINANCIAL CONDITION

The table below presents condensed consolidated ending balance sheets:

March 31,
2024

December 31,
2023

Increase (Decrease)

 $ %

Assets (dollars in thousands)

Cash and cash equivalents $ 357,333 $ 549,710 $ (192,377) (35.0)%

FRB and FHLB Stock 121,637 124,405 (2,768) (2.2)

Loans held for sale 10,624 15,158 (4,534) (29.9)

Investment securities 3,783,392 3,666,274 117,118 3.2 

Net loans, less ACL - loans 21,146,595 21,057,690 88,905 0.4 

Net premises and equipment 213,541 222,881 (9,340) (4.2)

Goodwill and intangibles 560,114 560,687 (573) (0.1)

Other assets 1,449,721 1,375,110 74,611 5.4 

Total Assets $ 27,642,957 $ 27,571,915 $ 71,042 0.3 %

Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity

Deposits $ 21,741,950 $ 21,537,623 $ 204,327 0.9 %

Borrowings 2,296,040 2,487,526 (191,486) (7.7)

Other liabilities 847,288 786,627 60,661 7.7 

Total Liabilities 24,885,278 24,811,776 73,502 0.3 

Total Shareholders' Equity 2,757,679 2,760,139 (2,460) (0.1)

Total Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity $ 27,642,957 $ 27,571,915 $ 71,042 0.3 %

Investment Securities

The following table presents the carrying amount of investment securities:

March 31,
2024

December 31,
2023

Increase (Decrease)

 $ %

Available for Sale (dollars in thousands)

U.S. Government securities $ — $ 42,161 $ (42,161) N/M

U.S. Government-sponsored agency securities 998 1,010 (12) (1.2)

State and municipal securities 1,052,259 1,072,013 (19,754) (1.8)

Corporate debt securities 444,267 440,551 3,716 0.8 

Collateralized mortgage obligations 187,428 111,434 75,994 68.2 

Residential mortgage-backed securities 316,832 196,795 120,037 61.0 

Commercial mortgage-backed securities 525,185 534,388 (9,203) (1.7)

   Total available for sale securities $ 2,526,969 $ 2,398,352 $ 128,617 5.4 %

Held to Maturity

Residential mortgage-backed securities $ 396,308 $ 407,075 $ (10,767) (2.6)%

Commercial mortgage-backed securities 860,115 860,847 (732) (0.1)

Total held to maturity securities $ 1,256,423 $ 1,267,922 $ (11,499) (0.9)%

Total Investment Securities $ 3,783,392 $ 3,666,274 $ 117,118 3.2 %

Compared to December 31, 2023, total AFS securities at March 31, 2024 increased $128.6 million, or 5.4%, primarily due to increases in residential
mortgage-backed securities and collateralized mortgage obligations of $120.0 million and $76.0 million,
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respectively, partially offset by decreases in U.S. Government securities and state and municipal securities of $42.2 million and $19.8 million, respectively.
The increases in residential mortgage-backed securities and collateralized mortgage obligations were driven by purchases of these securities.

At March 31, 2024, total HTM securities decreased $11.5 million compared to December 31, 2023, primarily driven by a decrease of $10.8 million in
residential mortgage-backed securities due to payments.

Loans

The following table presents ending net loans outstanding by type:

March 31,
2024

December 31,
2023

Increase (Decrease)

$ %

(dollars in thousands)

Real estate - commercial mortgage $ 8,252,117 $ 8,127,728 $ 124,389 1.5%

Commercial and industrial 4,467,589 4,545,552 (77,963) (1.7)%

Real estate - residential mortgage 5,395,720 5,325,923 69,797 1.3%

Real estate - home equity 1,040,335 1,047,184 (6,849) (0.7)%

Real estate - construction 1,249,199 1,239,075 10,124 0.8%

Consumer 698,421 729,318 (30,897) (4.2)%

Leases and other loans 341,102 336,314 4,788 1.4%

Net loans $ 21,444,483 $ 21,351,094 $ 93,389 0.4%

 Includes no unearned income for March 31, 2024 and $41.0 thousand for December 31, 2023.

 Includes unearned income of $38.0 million for March 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023.

During the three months ended March 31, 2024, net loans increased $93.4 million, or 0.4%, compared to December 31, 2023, primarily due to increases
in commercial mortgage loans and residential mortgage loans of $124.4 million and $69.8 million, respectively, partially offset by decreases in commercial
and industrial loans and consumer loans of $78.0 million and $30.9 million, respectively.

The Corporation does not have a significant concentration of credit risk with any single borrower. As of March 31, 2024, approximately $9.5 billion, or
44.3%, of the loan portfolio was comprised of commercial mortgage loans and construction loans. The Corporation has established lower total lending
limits for certain types of lending commitments and lower total lending limits based on the Corporation's internal risk rating of an individual borrower at the
time the lending commitment is approved.

(1)

(2)

(1)
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The following table summarizes the industry concentrations within the commercial mortgage and the commercial and industrial loan portfolios:

March 31, 2024 December 31, 2023

Real estate 48.7 % 46.6 %

Health care 7.0 6.6 

Manufacturing 6.2 6.1 

Agriculture 5.5 5.6 

Other services 4.5 4.5 

Construction 4.4 4.1 

Hospitality and food services 3.5 3.6 

Retail 3.3 3.3 

Wholesale trade 3.1 3.2 

Educational services 2.9 2.9 

Professional, scientific and technical services 2.4 2.2 

Arts, entertainment and recreation 1.9 1.9 

Transportation and warehousing 1.7 1.7 

Finance and Insurance 1.3 1.3 

Administrative and Support 1.1 1.1 

Public administration 1.0 1.0 

Other 1.5 4.3 

Total 100.0 % 100.0 %

 Includes commercial loans to borrowers engaged in the business of: renting, leasing or managing real estate for others; selling and/or buying real estate for

others; and appraising real estate. Real estate commercial office represents 3% of total loans.

 Includes commercial loans to borrowers engaged in the construction industry.

The following table presents the changes in non-accrual loans for the three months ended March 31, 2024:

Commercial 

and 

Industrial

Real Estate -

Commercial

Mortgage

Real Estate -

Construction

Real Estate -

Residential

Mortgage

Consumer and

Real Estate -

Home

Equity

Leases and other

loans Total

(dollars in thousands)

Balance at December 31, 2023 $ 39,952 $ 44,805 $ 1,341 $ 20,824 $ 4,805 $ 9,893 $ 121,620 

Additions 30,942 11,238 — 2,702 3,153 1,248 49,283 

Payments (12,064) (9,876) (55) (394) (272) (245) (22,906)

Charge-offs (7,632) (26) — (251) (2,238) (805) (10,952)

Transfers to accrual status (7,463) (180) — (142) (138) — (7,923)

Transfers to OREO — — — 506 — — 506 

Balance at March 31, 2024 $ 43,735 $ 45,961 $ 1,286 $ 23,245 $ 5,310 $ 10,091 $ 129,628 

During the first quarter of 2024, non-accrual loans increased  approximately $8.0 million, or 6.6%, largely due to additions to non-accrual loans, partially
offset by payments and charge-offs. During the three months ended March 31, 2024, non-accrual loans as a percentage of total loans increased to
0.60%, compared to 0.57% as of December 31, 2023.

(1)

(2)

(1)
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The following table summarizes non-performing assets as of the periods shown below:

March 31, 2024 December 31, 2023

 (dollars in thousands)

Non-accrual loans $ 129,628 $ 121,620

Loans 90 days or more past due and still accruing 26,521 31,721

Total non-performing loans 156,149 153,341

OREO 277 896

Total non-performing assets $ 156,426 $ 154,237

Non-accrual loans to total loans 0.60 % 0.57 %

Non-performing loans to total loans 0.73 % 0.72 %

Non-performing assets to total assets 0.57 % 0.56 %

ACL - loans to non-performing loans 191 % 191 %

 Excludes $19.0 million and $10.9 million of residential mortgage properties for which formal foreclosure proceedings were in process as of March 31, 2024

and December 31, 2023, respectively.

Non-performing loans at March 31, 2024 increased $2.8 million, or 1.8%, compared to $153.3 million as of December 31, 2023. Non-performing loans as
a percentage of total loans were 0.73% at March 31, 2024 and 0.72% at December 31, 2023. See "Note 4 - Loans and Allowance for Credit Losses," in
the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for further details on non-performing loans.

The ability to identify potential problem loans in a timely manner is important to maintaining an adequate ACL. For commercial and industrial loans,
commercial mortgages and commercial construction loans to commercial borrowers, an internal risk rating process is used to monitor credit quality. The
evaluation of credit risk for residential mortgages, home equity loans, construction loans to individuals, consumer loans and leases and other loans is
based on payment history, through the monitoring of delinquency levels and trends.

Total internally risk-rated loans were $13.7 billion as of March 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023, respectively, of which $1.0 billion and $0.9 billion were
criticized and classified, respectively. For a description of the Corporation's risk ratings, see "Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies -
Allowance for Credit Losses" in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements in the Corporation's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2023.

The following table presents criticized and classified loans, or those with internal risk ratings of special mention or substandard or lower for commercial
mortgages, commercial and industrial loans and construction loans to commercial borrowers, by class segment:

Special Mention Increase (Decrease) Substandard or Lower Increase (Decrease)

Total Criticized and Classified

Loans

March 31, 2024
December 31,

2023 $ % March 31, 2024
December 31,

2023 $ % March 31, 2024
December 31,

2023

(dollars in thousands)

Real estate -

commercial

mortgage $ 340,848 $ 302,553 $ 38,295 12.7% $ 248,325 $ 224,774 $ 23,551 10.5 % $ 589,173 $ 527,327

Commercial and

industrial 122,170 135,837 (13,667) (10.1) 243,219 196,500 46,719 23.8 365,389 332,337

Real estate -

construction 22,273 38,520 (16,247) (42.2) 24,404 26,771 (2,367) (8.8) 46,677 65,291

Total $ 485,291 $ 476,910 $ 8,381 1.8% $ 515,948 $ 448,045 $ 67,903 15.2% $ 1,001,239 $ 924,955

% of total risk rated

loans 3.5 % 3.5 % 3.8 % 3.3 % 7.3 % 6.8 %

 Considered "criticized" loans by banking regulators.

 Considered "classified" loans by banking regulators.

Excludes construction - other.

(1)

(1)

(1) (2)
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The Corporation accounts for the credit risk associated with lending activities through the ACL and the provision for credit losses.

The following table presents the activity in the ACL:

 Three months ended March 31

 2024 2023

 (dollars in thousands)

Average balance of net loans $ 21,370,033 $ 20,463,096

Balance of ACL at beginning of period $ 293,404 $ 269,366

Loans charged off:

Real estate - commercial mortgage (26) (13,362)

Commercial and industrial (7,632) (612)

Real estate - residential mortgage (251) —

Consumer and real estate - home equity (2,238) (2,206)

Real estate - construction — —

Leases and other loans (805) (723)

Total loans charged off (10,952) (16,903)

Recoveries of loans previously charged off:

Real estate - commercial mortgage 152 786

Commercial and industrial 1,248 1,086

Real estate - residential mortgage 116 48

Consumer and real estate - home equity 676 661

Real estate - construction — 202

Leases and other loans 162 116

Total recoveries 2,354 2,899

Net loans charged off (recoveries) (8,598) (14,004)

Provision for credit losses 13,082 23,333

Balance of ACL at end of period $ 297,888 $ 278,695

Provision for OBS credit exposures $ (2,157) $ 1,211

Reserve for OBS credit exposures $ 15,097 $ 17,539

Net charge-offs to average loans (annualized) 0.16 % 0.27 %

Provision included in the table only includes the portion related to net loans.

 Reserve for OBS credit exposures is recorded with other liabilities on the consolidated balance sheets.

The provision for credit losses, specific to loans, for the three months ended March 31, 2024 was $13.1 million, compared to a provision of $23.3 million
recorded for the same period in 2023. The ACL includes qualitative adjustments, as appropriate, intended to capture the impact of uncertainties not
reflected in the quantitative models. See "Note 4 - Loans and Allowance for Credit Losses," in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for further
details on the provision for credit losses.

(1)

(2)

(1) 
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The following table summarizes the allocation of the ACL - loans:

March 31, 2024 December 31, 2023

ACL - loans
% to Total ACL

- loans
% to Total Net

Loans ACL - loans
% to Total ACL -

loans
% to Total Net

Loans

(dollars in thousands)

Real estate - commercial mortgage $ 114,492 38.4 % 38.5 % $ 112,565 38.4 % 38.1 %

Commercial and industrial 76,883 25.8 20.8 74,266 25.3 21.3 

Real estate - residential mortgage 73,216 24.6 25.2 73,286 25.0 24.9 

Consumer, home equity and leases and other
loans 20,331 6.8 9.7 20,992 7.1 9.9 

Real estate - construction 12,966 4.4 5.8 12,295 4.2 5.8 

Total ACL - loans $ 297,888 100.0 % 100.0 % $ 293,404 100.0 % 100.0 %

 Ending ACL - loan portfolio segment balance as a % of total ACL - loans.

 Ending loan portfolio segment balances as a % of total net loans for the periods presented.

Deposits and Borrowings

The following table presents ending deposits by type:

March 31,
2024

December 31,
2023

Increase (Decrease)

$ %

(dollars in thousands)

Noninterest-bearing demand $ 5,086,514 $ 5,314,094 $ (227,580) (4.3)%

Interest-bearing demand 5,521,017 5,722,695 (201,678) (3.5)

Savings and money market deposits 6,846,038 6,616,901 229,137 3.5 

Total demand and savings 17,453,569 17,653,690 (200,121) (1.1)

Brokered deposits 1,152,427 1,144,692 7,735 0.7 

Time deposits 3,135,954 2,739,241 396,713 14.5 

Total deposits $ 21,741,950 $ 21,537,623 $ 204,327 0.9 %

During the three months ended March 31, 2024, total deposits increased by $204.3 million, or 0.9%, compared to December 31, 2023. The increase in
total deposits was primarily due to increases in time deposits and savings and money market deposits of $396.7 million and $229.1 million, respectively,
partially offset by decreases in noninterest-bearing demand deposits and interest-bearing demand deposits of $227.6 million and $201.7 million,
respectively.

Total uninsured deposits were estimated to be $7.1 billion and $7.2 billion at March 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023, respectively.

Time deposits of $250 thousand or more were $698.2 million and $551.2 million at March 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023, respectively.

(1) (2) (1) (2)

(1)

(2)
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The following table presents ending borrowings by type:

 March 31,
2024

December 31,
2023

Increase (Decrease)

 $ %

 (dollars in thousands)

Federal funds purchased $ — $ 240,000 $ (240,000) N/M

Federal Home Loan Bank advances 900,000 1,100,000 (200,000) (18.2)

Senior debt and subordinated debt 535,566 535,384 182 — 

Other borrowings 860,474 612,142 248,332 40.6 

Total borrowings $ 2,296,040 $ 2,487,526 $ (191,486) (7.7) %

 Includes repurchase agreements, short-term promissory notes and capital leases.

During the three months ended March 31, 2024, total borrowings decreased $191.5 million, or 7.7%, compared to December 31, 2023. The decrease in
total borrowings was due to decreases in Federal funds purchased and FHLB advances of $240.0 million and $200.0 million, respectively, partially offset
by an increase in other borrowings of $248.3 million.

Shareholders' Equity

On December 19, 2023, the Corporation announced that its Board of Directors approved the 2024 Repurchase Program. The 2024 Repurchase Program
will expire on December 31, 2024. Under the 2024 Repurchase Program, the Corporation is authorized to repurchase up to $125.0 million of shares of its
common stock through December 31, 2024. Under this authorization, up to $25.0 million of the $125 million authorization may be used to repurchase
shares of the Corporation's preferred stock and outstanding subordinated notes.

During the three months ended March 31, 2024, 1,934,297 shares were repurchased under the 2024 Repurchase Program at a total cost of $30.3 million,
or $15.69 per share.

Regulatory Capital

The Corporation and its wholly owned subsidiary bank, Fulton Bank, are subject to the Capital Rules administered by banking regulators. Failure to meet
minimum capital requirements can trigger certain actions by regulators that could have a material effect on the Corporation's financial statements.

The Capital Rules require the Corporation and Fulton Bank to:

• Meet a minimum Common Equity Tier 1 capital ratio of 4.50% of risk-weighted assets;

• Meet a minimum Tier 1 Leverage capital ratio of 4.00% of average assets;

• Meet a minimum Total capital ratio of 8.00% of risk-weighted assets and a minimum Tier 1 capital ratio of 6.00% of risk-weighted assets;

• Maintain a "capital conservation buffer" of 2.50% above the minimum risk-based capital requirements, which must be maintained to avoid
restrictions on capital distributions and certain discretionary bonus payments; and

• Comply with a revised definition of capital to improve the ability of regulatory capital instruments to absorb losses. Certain non-qualifying capital
instruments, including cumulative preferred stock and TruPS, are excluded as a component of Tier 1 capital for institutions of the Corporation's
size.

As of March 31, 2024, the Corporation's capital levels met the minimum capital requirements, including the capital conservation buffers, as prescribed in
the Capital Rules.

As of March 31, 2024, Fulton Bank met the well-capitalized requirements under the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action. To be categorized
as well-capitalized, a bank must maintain minimum Total risk-based, Tier I risk-based, Common Equity Tier I risk-based and Tier I leverage ratios as set
forth in the Capital Rules. There were no other conditions or events since March 31, 2024 that management believes have changed the Corporation's
capital categories.

(1)

(1)
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The following table summarizes the Corporation's capital ratios in comparison to regulatory requirements:

March 31,
2024 December 31, 2023

Regulatory
Minimum
for Capital
Adequacy

Fully Phased-in, with
Capital Conservation

Buffers

Total Risk-Based Capital (to Risk-Weighted Assets) 14.0 % 14.0 % 8.0 % 10.5 %

Tier I Risk-Based Capital (to Risk-Weighted Assets) 11.1 % 11.2 % 6.0 % 8.5 %

Common Equity Tier I (to Risk-Weighted Assets) 10.3 % 10.3 % 4.5 % 7.0 %

Tier I Leverage Capital (to Average Assets) 9.3 % 9.5 % 4.0 % 4.0 %

Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

Market risk is the exposure to economic loss that arises from changes in the values of certain financial instruments. The types of market risk exposures
generally faced by financial institutions include interest rate risk, equity market price risk, debt security market price risk, foreign currency price risk and
commodity price risk. Due to the nature of its operations, foreign currency price risk and commodity price risk are not significant to the Corporation.

Interest Rate Risk, Asset/Liability Management and Liquidity

Interest rate risk creates exposure in two primary areas. First, changes in rates have an impact on the Corporation's liquidity position and could affect its
ability to meet obligations and continue to grow. Second, movements in interest rates can create fluctuations in the Corporation's net interest income and
changes in the economic value of its equity.

The Corporation employs various management techniques to minimize its exposure to interest rate risk. The Corporation's ALCO is responsible for
reviewing the interest rate sensitivity and liquidity positions of the Corporation, approving asset and liability management policies, and overseeing the
formulation and implementation of strategies regarding balance sheet positions.

The Corporation uses two complementary methods to measure and manage interest rate risk. They are a simulation of net interest income and estimates
of economic value of equity. Using these measurements in tandem provides a reasonably comprehensive summary of the magnitude of the Corporation's
interest rate risk, level of risk as time evolves, and exposure to changes in interest rates.

Simulation of net interest income is performed for the next 12-month period. A variety of interest rate scenarios are used to measure the effects of sudden
and gradual movements upward and downward in the yield curve. These results are compared to the results obtained in a flat or unchanged interest rate
scenario. Simulation of net interest income is used primarily to measure the Corporation's short-term earnings exposure to rate movements. The
Corporation's policy limits the potential exposure of net interest income, in a non-parallel instantaneous shock, to 10% of the base case net interest
income for a 100 bps shock in interest rates, 15% for a 200 bps shock, 20% for a 300 bps shock and 25% for a 400 bps shock. A "shock" is an
immediate upward or downward movement of interest rates. The shocks do not take into account changes in customer behavior that could result in
changes to mix and/or volumes in the balance sheet, nor does it take into account the potential effects of competition on the pricing of deposits and loans
over the forward 12-month period.

Contractual maturities and repricing opportunities of loans are incorporated in the simulation model as are prepayment assumptions, maturity data and
call options within the investment portfolio. Assumptions based on past experience are incorporated into the model for non-maturity deposit accounts. The
assumptions used are inherently uncertain and, as a result, the model cannot precisely measure future net interest income or precisely predict the impact
of fluctuations in market interest rates on net interest income. Actual results will differ from the model's simulated results due to timing, amount and
frequency of interest rate changes as well as changes in market conditions and the application and timing of various management strategies.
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The following table summarizes the expected impact of abrupt interest rate changes, that is, a non-parallel instantaneous shock, on net interest income
as of March 31, 2024:

Rate Shock
Annual change

in net interest income
% change in net interest

income

+400 bp + $52.6 million +5.8%

+300 bp + $40.6 million +4.5%

+200 bp + $28.8 million +3.2%

+100 bp + $17.7 million +2.0%

–100 bp - $39.4 million -4.4%

–200 bp - $79.5 million -8.8%

–300 bp - $111.1 million -12.3%

–400 bp - $131.9 million -14.6%

 These results include the effect of implicit and explicit interest rate floors that limit further reduction in interest rates.

Economic value of equity estimates the discounted present value of asset and liability cash flows. Discount rates are based upon market prices for like
assets and liabilities. Abrupt changes or "shocks" in interest rates, both upward and downward, are used to determine the comparative effect of such
interest rate movements relative to the unchanged environment. This measurement tool is used primarily to evaluate the longer-term repricing risks and
options in the Corporation's balance sheet. The Corporation's policy limits the economic value of equity that may be at risk, in a non-parallel
instantaneous shock, to 10% of the base case economic value of equity for a 100 bps shock in interest rates, 20% for a 200 bps shock, 30% for a 300
bps shock and 40% for a 400 bps shock. As of March 31, 2024, the Corporation was within economic value of equity policy limits for every 100 bps
shock.

Interest Rate Derivatives

The Corporation enters into interest rate derivatives with certain qualifying commercial loan customers to meet their interest rate risk management needs.
The Corporation simultaneously enters into interest rate derivatives with dealer counterparties, with identical notional amounts and terms. The net result
of these interest rate derivatives is that the customer pays a fixed rate of interest and the Corporation receives a floating rate. These interest rate
derivatives are derivative financial instruments, and the gross fair values are recorded in other assets and liabilities on the consolidated balance sheets,
with changes in fair value during the period recorded in other non-interest expense on the consolidated statements of income.

Cash Flow Hedges

The Corporation's objectives in using interest rate derivatives are to reduce volatility in interest income and interest expense and to manage its exposure
to interest rate movements. To accomplish this objective, the Corporation primarily uses interest rate derivatives as part of its interest rate risk
management strategy. The Corporation enters into interest rate derivatives designated as cash flow hedges to hedge the variable cash flows associated
with existing floating rate loans and borrowings.

For derivatives designated and that qualify as cash flow hedges of interest rate risk, the unrealized gain or loss on the derivative is recorded in AOCI and
subsequently reclassified into interest income or interest expense in the same period during which the hedged transaction affects earnings. Amounts
reported in AOCI related to derivatives will be reclassified to interest income as interest payments are made on the Corporation's variable-rate liabilities.

In January 2023, the Corporation terminated interest rate derivatives designated as cash flow hedges with a combined notional amount of $1.0 billion. As
the hedged transaction continues to be probable, the unrealized losses that have been recorded in AOCI will be recognized as a reduction to interest
income when the previously forecasted hedged item affects earnings in future periods. During the three months ended March 31, 2024, $7.0 million of
these unrealized losses have been reclassified as a reduction of interest income on loans, including fees, on the consolidated statements of income.

Liquidity

The Corporation must maintain a sufficient level of liquid assets to meet the cash needs of its customers, who, as depositors, may want to withdraw funds
or who, as borrowers, need credit availability. Liquidity is provided on a continuous basis through scheduled and unscheduled principal and interest
payments on investments and outstanding loans and through the availability of

(1)

(1)
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deposits and borrowings. The Corporation also maintains secondary sources that provide liquidity on a secured and unsecured basis to meet short- and
long-term needs.

The Corporation maintains liquidity sources in the form of interest-bearing deposits and customer funding (short-term promissory notes). The Corporation
can access additional liquidity from these sources, if necessary, by increasing the rates of interest paid on those instruments. The positive impact to
liquidity resulting from paying higher interest rates could have a detrimental impact on NIM and net interest income if rates on interest-earning assets do
not experience a proportionate increase. Borrowing availability with the FHLB and the FRB, along with federal funds lines at various correspondent banks,
provides the Corporation with additional liquidity.

Fulton Bank is a member of the FHLB and has access to FHLB overnight and term credit facilities. As of March 31, 2024, the Bank had total borrowing
capacity of approximately $9.4 billion with $3.3 billion of advances and letters of credit outstanding, for a remaining available borrowing capacity of
approximately $6.1 billion under these facilities. Advances from the FHLB are secured by qualifying commercial real estate and residential mortgage
loans, investments and other assets.

As of March 31, 2024, the Corporation had aggregate federal funds lines borrowing capacity of $2.6 billion with $0 outstanding against that amount. As of
March 31, 2024, the Corporation had $1.2 billion of collateralized borrowing capacity at the FRB discount window.

A combination of commercial real estate loans, commercial loans, consumer loans and securities are pledged to the FRB of Philadelphia to provide
access to FRB discount window borrowings. Securities carried at $0.6 billion at March 31, 2024 and $0.4 billion at December 31, 2023 were pledged as
collateral to secure public and trust deposits.

Liquidity must also be managed at the Corporation's parent company level. For safety and soundness reasons, banking regulations limit the amount of
cash that can be transferred from subsidiary banks to the parent company in the form of loans and dividends. Generally, these limitations are based on
the subsidiary banks’ regulatory capital levels and their net income. Management continues to monitor the liquidity and capital needs of the parent
company including monitoring the granularity of the deposit portfolio and level of uninsured deposits. Management will implement appropriate strategies,
as necessary, to remain adequately capitalized and to meet its cash needs.

The consolidated statements of cash flows provide additional information. The Corporation's operating activities during the three months ended March 31,
2024 provided $152.9 million of cash. Cash used by investing activities was $299.9 million and was mainly due to the purchase of AFS securities and a
net increase in loans. Cash used by financing activities was $45.4 million, and was primarily due to acquisition of treasury stock and dividends paid,
partially offset by a net $12.7 million increase in deposits and other borrowings.

Debt Security Market Price Risk

Debt security market price risk is the risk that changes in the values of debt securities, unrelated to interest rate changes, could have a material impact on
the financial position or results of operations of the Corporation. The Corporation's debt security investments consist primarily of U.S. government-
sponsored agency issued mortgage-backed securities and collateralized mortgage obligations, state and municipal securities, and corporate debt
securities. All of the Corporation's investments in mortgage-backed securities and collateralized mortgage obligations have principal payments that are
guaranteed by U.S. government-sponsored agencies.

State and Municipal Securities

As of March 31, 2024, the Corporation owned securities issued by various states and municipalities with a total fair value of $1.1 billion. Uncertainty with
respect to the financial strength of state and municipal bond insurers places emphasis on the underlying strength of issuers. Pressure on local tax
revenues of issuers due to adverse economic conditions could have an adverse impact on the underlying credit quality of issuers. The Corporation
evaluates existing and potential holdings primarily based on the underlying creditworthiness of the issuing state or municipality and then, to a lesser
extent, on any credit enhancement. State and municipal securities can be supported by the general obligation of the issuing state or municipality, allowing
the securities to be repaid by any means available to the issuing state or municipality. As of March 31, 2024, approximately 100% of state and municipal
securities were supported by the general obligation of corresponding states or municipalities. Approximately 74% of these securities were school district
issuances, which are also supported by the states of the issuing municipalities.
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Item 4. Controls and Procedures

The Corporation carried out an evaluation, under the supervision and with the participation of the Corporation's management, including the Corporation's
Chief Executive Officer and Interim Chief Financial Officer, of the effectiveness of the design and operation of the Corporation's disclosure controls and
procedures pursuant to Rule 13a-15, promulgated under the Exchange Act. Based upon that evaluation, the Corporation's Chief Executive Officer and
Interim Chief Financial Officer concluded that, as of March 31, 2024, the Corporation's disclosure controls and procedures are effective. Disclosure
controls and procedures are controls and procedures that are designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed in Corporation reports filed or
submitted under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the SEC's rules and forms.

PART II – OTHER INFORMATION

Item 1. Legal Proceedings

The information presented in the "Legal Proceedings" section of Note 12 "Commitments and Contingencies" of the Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 1A. Risk Factors

Item 1A. Risk Factors of the Corporation's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2023 includes a discussion of the material risks
and uncertainties that could adversely affect the Corporation's business, results of operations and financial condition.

The information presented below provides an update to, and should be read in conjunction with, the risk factors and other information contained in the
Corporation's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2023.

We may fail to realize the anticipated benefits of the Republic First Transaction.

The success of the Republic First Transaction will depend on, among other things, our ability to integrate the Republic First Assets and Liabilities into our
business in a manner that facilitates growth opportunities and achieves the anticipated benefits of the Republic First Transaction. Although the Republic
First Transaction was an FDIC-assisted transaction, we are still subject to some of the same risks we would face in acquiring another bank in a
negotiated transaction. In addition, because of the expedited nature of the FDIC-assisted transaction, which did not allow bidders the time and access to
information customarily associated with preparing for and evaluating a negotiated transaction, we may face additional risks. Such risks include risks
associated with maintaining customer relationships and failure to realize the anticipated acquisition benefits in the amounts and within the time frames we
expect. Further, we did not enter into a loss sharing arrangement with the FDIC in connection with the Republic First Transaction. If we are not able to
successfully achieve our objectives and manage the corresponding risks, the anticipated benefits of the Republic First Transaction may not be realized
fully or at all or may take longer to realize than expected.

There is a significant degree of difficulty and management distraction inherent in the process of integrating an acquisition, including challenges
consolidating certain operations and functions (including regulatory functions), integrating technologies, organizations, procedures, policies and
operations, addressing differences in the business cultures of the Corporation and retaining key personnel. In addition, the success of the Republic First
Transaction will depend on a number of factors, including, but not limited to our ability to limit the outflow of deposits held by our new customers and to
successfully retain and manage interest-earning assets (i.e., loans) acquired in the Republic First Transaction, our ability to attract new deposits and to
generate new interest-earning assets in the areas previously served by the former Republic First Bank branches, our ability to control the incremental
non-interest expense from the former Republic First Bank branches and other units in a manner that enables us to maintain a favorable overall efficiency
ratio, the accuracy of our assumptions regarding the value of the Republic First Assets and Liabilities, our ability to effectively manage the ongoing
relationship with the FDIC related to the Republic First Transaction, our ability to collect on the loans acquired, our assumptions regarding the risk profile
of the loans acquired, and our ability to earn acceptable levels of interest and non-interest income. The integration may be complex and time consuming
and involve delays or additional and unforeseen expenses. The integration process and other disruptions resulting from the Republic First Transaction
may also disrupt our ongoing business, which may cause the Corporation to lose clients and customers, or cause clients and customers to move their
business to competing financial institutions. It is possible that the integration process could result in inconsistencies in standards, controls, procedures
and policies that could adversely affect the Corporation's ability to maintain relationships with clients, customers, depositors and employees. In addition,
the loss of key employees in connection with the Republic First Transaction could adversely affect the Corporation's ability to successfully conduct its
business. Any failure to successfully or cost-effectively integrate the Republic First Assets and Liabilities in connection with the Republic First Transaction
could have a material adverse effect on our business, operations and financial
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position, including as a result of reputational harm or other legal or regulatory costs associated with the Republic First Transaction.

We may incur unforeseen liabilities or losses in connection with the Republic First Transaction.

In connection with the Republic First Transaction, we have agreed to assume certain liabilities of Republic First Bank. The expedited nature of the
Republic First Transaction did not allow bidders the time and access to information customarily associated with preparing for and evaluating a negotiated
transaction. As such, there may be liabilities that we failed or were unable to discover in the course of performing due diligence investigations into the
Republic First Assets and Liabilities, or we may not have correctly assessed the significance of certain liabilities identified in the course of our due
diligence. Any such liabilities, individually or in the aggregate, could lead to unforeseen losses, which may be significant, and which could have a material
adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations.

Our assumptions regarding the fair value of Republic First Assets and Liabilities could be inaccurate which could materially and adversely
affect our business, financial condition, results of operations, and future prospects.

Our acquisition of certain assets of Republic First Bank in connection with the Republic First Transaction followed the FDIC's competitive bidding process.
The expedited nature of the transaction did not allow bidders the time and access to information customarily associated with preparing for and evaluating
a negotiated transaction. The determination of both the aggregate amount and the fair value of the Republic First Assets and Liabilities is based on
estimates about discount rates, future expected cash flows, market conditions and other future events that are highly subjective in nature and subject to
change. Our estimates of the fair value of the Republic First Assets and Liabilities are based on information provided to us by the FDIC, much of which
has not been independently verified given the nature of the FDIC's expedited competitive bidding process. Further, we have not entered into a loss
sharing arrangement with the FDIC in connection with the Republic First Transaction. As a result, fair value assumptions we have made in connection
with Republic First Assets and Liabilities in the Republic First Transaction may be inaccurate and subject to change as the acquired assets and
customers are integrated into Fulton Bank and we acquire additional information and details about the Republic First Assets and Liabilities. If our
assumptions and projections regarding the fair value of the Republic First Assets and Liabilities are wrong, it could adversely impact our business,
financial condition and results of operations.

We are in the process of validating the fair value of the Republic First Assets and Liabilities based on ongoing internal assessments and continuing
discussions with the FDIC regarding the fair value of the assets acquired in the Republic First Transaction, which may impact our assumptions and
estimates regarding the fair value of the Republic First Assets and Liabilities. In addition, we may obtain additional information and evidence that could
result in changes to our assumptions regarding the fair value of the Republic First Assets and Liabilities in connection with the Republic First Transaction,
including potential decreases in the fair value of the Republic First Assets and Liabilities.

Item 2. Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds

(a)  None.
(b)  None.

(c)

                            Period
Total Number of

Shares Purchased
Average Price Paid

per Share

Total Number of Shares
Purchased as Part of
Publicly Announced
Plans or Programs

Approximate Dollar
Value of Shares that May
Yet Be Purchased Under
the Plans or Programs

January 1, 2024 to January 31, 2024 514,004 $ 16.08 514,004 $ 116,733,523 

February 1, 2024 to February 29, 2024 1,420,293 15.55 1,420,293 94,651,692 

March 1, 2024 to March 31, 2024 — — — 94,651,692 

 Includes 1% excise tax

On December 19, 2023, the Corporation announced that its Board of Directors approved the 2024 Repurchase Program. The 2024 Repurchase Program
will expire on December 31, 2024. Under the 2024 Repurchase Program, the Corporation is authorized to repurchase up to $125.0 million of shares of its
common stock through December 31, 2024. Under this authorization, up to $25.0 million of the $125 million authorization may be used to repurchase
shares of the Corporation's preferred stock and outstanding subordinated notes.

As permitted by securities laws and other legal requirements and subject to market conditions and other factors, purchases may be made from time to
time under the 2024 Repurchase Program in open market or privately negotiated transactions, including

(1)

(1)
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without limitation, through accelerated share repurchase transactions. The 2024 Repurchase Program may be discontinued at any time.

During the three months ended March 31, 2024, 1,934,297 shares were repurchased under the 2024 Repurchase Program at a total cost of $30.3 million,
or $15.69 per share.
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Item 5. Other Information

(c) None of the Corporation's directors or "officers" (as defined in Rule 16a-1(f) (17 C.F.R. § 240.16a-1(f))) adopted or terminated a "Rule 10b5-1 trading
arrangement" or a "non-Rule 10b5-1 trading arrangement" (as those terms are defined in Item 408 of Regulation S-K (17 C.F.R. § 229.408)) during the
fiscal quarter ended March 31, 2024.
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Item 6. Exhibits

1.1 Underwriting Agreement, dated as of April 29, 2024, by and among Fulton Financial Corporation and Piper Sandler & Co. and BofA
Securities, Inc., as representatives of the several underwriters listed in Schedule I thereto (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 1.1 of the
Fulton Financial Corporation Current Report on Form 8-K filed on May 1, 2024).

2.1 Purchase and Assumption Agreement – Whole Bank, All Deposits, effective as of April 26, 2024, with the Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation, as receiver of Republic First Bank, the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation, and Fulton Bank, National Association
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 of the Fulton Financial Corporation Current Report on Form 8-K filed on May 2, 2024).

3.1 Articles of Incorporation, as amended and restated, of Fulton Financial Corporation as amended (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1
of the Fulton Financial Corporation Current Report Form 8-K filed June 24, 2011).

3.2 Statement with Respect to Shares of Fixed Rate Non-Cumulative Perpetual Preferred Stock, Series A of Fulton Financial Corporation,
dated October 23, 2020, filed with the Pennsylvania Department of State (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 of the Fulton Financial
Corporation Current Report on Form 8-K filed on October 29, 2020).

3.3 Bylaws of Fulton Financial Corporation as amended (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 of the Fulton Financial Corporation Current
Report on a Form 8-K filed May 14, 2021).

4.1 Statement with Respect to Shares of Fixed Rate Non-Cumulative Perpetual Preferred Stock, Series A of Fulton Financial Corporation,
dated October 23, 2020, filed with the Pennsylvania Department of State (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 of the Fulton Financial
Corporation Current Report on Form 8-K filed on October 29, 2020).

4.2 Deposit Agreement, dated October 29, 2020, among Fulton Financial Corporation, Equiniti Trust Company, as depositary, and the
holders from time to time of the depositary receipts described therein (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 of the Fulton Financial
Corporation Current Report on Form 8-K filed on October 29, 2020).

4.3 Form of depositary receipt representing the Depositary Shares (Included in Exhibit 4.2).

4.4 Stock Certificate (Incorporated by reference as Exhibit 4.1 of Fulton Financial Corporation Registration Statement on Form S-4 filed on
April 21, 2022).

10.1 Separation Agreement and General Release - filed herewith.

10.2 Form of Time-Vested Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement - filed herewith.

10.3 Form of Performance Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement Total Shareholder Return ("TSR") Component - filed herewith.

31.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

31.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

32.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

32.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

101 Interactive data files pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T: (i) Unaudited Consolidated Balance Sheets, (ii) Unaudited Consolidated
Statements of Income, (iii) Unaudited Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income, (iv) Unaudited Consolidated Statements of
Shareholders' Equity, (v) Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows, and (vi) Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

104 Cover page interactive data file (formatted as inline XBRL and contained in Exhibit 101)
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FULTON FINANCIAL CORPORATION

Date: May 9, 2024 /s/ Curtis J. Myers

Curtis J. Myers

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Date: May 9, 2024 /s/ Beth Ann L. Chivinski

Beth Ann L. Chivinski

Senior Executive Vice President and Interim Chief Financial Officer
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Exhibit 10.1

SEPARATION AGREEMENT AND GENERAL RELEASE

This Separation Agreement and General Release (“Separation Agreement”) is executed by and between
Fulton Financial Corporation, a Pennsylvania corporation (“Fulton”), and Mark R. McCollom, an adult individual
(“McCollom”).

WHEREAS, McCollom has been employed by Fulton;

WHEREAS, McCollom resigned from his employment with Fulton, and McCollom’s employment with Fulton
terminated permanently and irrevocably, on and effective as of February 8, 2024; and

WHEREAS, Fulton and McCollom desire to enter into this Separation Agreement to reflect their mutual
undertakings, promises, and agreements.

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and promises contained herein, and for other
good and valuable consideration, the adequacy and receipt of which are hereby acknowledged, McCollom and
Fulton agree to the following:

IT IS HEREBY AGREED by and between the parties as follows:

1. Employment Status: McCollom and Fulton agree that McCollom’s employment with Fulton terminated
permanently and irrevocably, effective February 8, 2024 (“Separation Date”), and Fulton has no obligation to
rehire, reemploy, recall, or hire McCollom in the future. McCollom acknowledges that McCollom has received all
wages, bonuses, vacation pay, and other benefits and compensation due to McCollom by virtue of McCollom’s
employment with Fulton.

2. Separation Payments and Benefits: In consideration for McCollom’s signing and not revoking this
Separation Agreement, Fulton shall pay McCollom a one-time lump sum payment in cash in an amount equal to
Three Hundred Twenty-Five Thousand Dollars ($325,000.00), less standard payroll deductions, if any (“Separation
Payment”). This Separation Payment will be made as soon as practicable after Fulton receives a signed copy of
this Separation Agreement and the expiration of the period described in Section 22 of this Separation Agreement.

3. Release of Claims: In consideration of the Separation Payment, and for other good and valuable
consideration:

(a)    McCollom releases Fulton, its parents, subsidiaries, affiliates, and all related entities, and its
and their past and present officers, directors, employees, agents, predecessors, successors, and assigns
(“Releasees”), from all liability, actions, charges, causes of action, claims and demands, or claims for relief,
remuneration, sums of money, accounts or expenses (including for attorney's fees and costs) of any kind
whatsoever, in law or in equity, whether known or unknown or contingent or absolute, which heretofore has
been or which hereafter may be suffered or sustained, directly or indirectly, by McCollom, from the
beginning of McCollom’s employment with Fulton up to the date McCollom signs this Separation
Agreement, including but not limited to those arising from or related to McCollom’s employment with the
Releasees or the conclusion of McCollom’s employment, the Employment Agreement, or any events
occurring on or prior to the date



of this release of claims. Such claims include, but are not limited to, any waivable claims which may or
could have been asserted under federal, state or local anti-discrimination laws or other statute (including,
but not limited to, Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended, the Civil Rights Act of 1866, Section
1981, the Americans with Disabilities Act, the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, the National Labor Relations Act,
the Fair Labor Standards Act, the Employee Retirement Income Security Act, and the Pennsylvania Human
Relations Act), as well as any other related or unrelated claims arising from any other constitutional or
statutory law or any claim based upon tort or contract, or any right or claim based on an alleged privacy
violation, any claims for defamation or slander, any claims under any express or implied contract which
McCollom may claim existed with Releasees, claims for wrongful discharge and all claims for alleged
physical or personal injury, emotional distress relating to or arising out of McCollom’s employment with the
Company or any of its subsidiaries or affiliates or the conclusion of that employment; and any claims under
the WARN Act or any similar law, other common law claims now or hereafter recognized and any derivative
claim that any of McCollom’s heirs, executors, administrators, assigns may have arising thereunder, and all
claims for counsel fees and costs. Further, McCollom releases and discharges all the above Releasees
from any liability for compensation or damages, including but not limited to, any claim for compensatory or
punitive damages, attorneys’ fees, and costs of any kind.

(b) McCollom further waives all rights to participate in a class, collective, or representative action in
any capacity under any statute or other theory of relief.

(c) McCollom also expressly and specifically waives any rights and claims under the Age
Discrimination in Employment Act (ADEA), 29 U.S.C. § 621 et seq. against the Releasees arising from
McCollom’s employment or conclusion from employment up to the date McCollom signs this Separation
Agreement.

(d) McCollom also agrees that this release should be interpreted as broadly as possible to achieve
McCollom’s intention to waive all of McCollom’s claims against the Releasees.

(e) McCollom covenants not to sue the Releasees for any matter or claim covered by this release
and that any such lawsuit is a breach of this covenant and release.

4 .    Release Exclusions and Additional Protections: Notwithstanding any other provision of this Separation
Agreement, the following are not barred by this Separation Agreement: (a) claims relating to the validity of this
Separation Agreement; (b) claims by either party to enforce this Separation Agreement; (c) claims under any state
workers’ compensation or unemployment law; and (d) claims that legally may not be waived. Further, nothing in
this Separation Agreement prohibits McCollom from reporting in good faith any violations of federal law or
regulation to any governmental agency or entity, including but not limited to the Department of Justice (“DOJ”), the
Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”), Congress, and any agency or Inspector General, or making other
disclosures that are protected under the whistleblower provisions of federal law or regulation. McCollom does not
need Fulton’s prior authorization to make any such reports or disclosures, and McCollom is not required to notify
Fulton that McCollom has made such reports or disclosures. Nothing in this Separation Agreement shall preclude
McCollom from filing a good-



faith charge with or participating in an investigation by a government administrative agency enforcing civil rights or
other laws, such as the Equal Employment Opportunity Commission (“EEOC”), National Labor Relations Board
(“NLRB”), or any other federal, state or local government agency.

5. IRS Issues: As required by law, Fulton will issue the appropriate IRS Form(s) W-2 at the appropriate time.

6. No Future Payments Except Those Described Herein: Except as set forth in this Separation Agreement, it is
expressly agreed and understood by the parties that Fulton does not have, and will not have, any obligation to
provide McCollom at any time in the future with any bonus or other payments, benefits, or consideration other
than those set forth in Section 2 above and other than those to which McCollom may be entitled under Fulton’s
benefit plans, including 401(k) and pension plans, if applicable. McCollom expressly acknowledges that no
contributions from the Separation Payment described in Section 2 above, will be made to a 401(k) or pension
plan.

7. Section 409A of the Internal Revenue Code: This Separation Agreement and the Separation Payment
described in Section 2 above shall be subject to the provisions of Section 6.11 of the Executive Employment
Agreement between McCollom and Fulton concerning Section 409A of the Internal Revenue Code.

8. No Admission of Liability: McCollom expressly acknowledges and agrees that this Separation Agreement is
not and shall not be in interpreted to be an admission of wrongdoing or an admission of liability by Fulton.

9. Cooperation: McCollom agrees to cooperate with Fulton, at mutually convenient times and places, in
connection with any ongoing administrative, regulatory, mediation, arbitration, investigation, or litigation
proceedings or such like matters that may arise in the future, as to matters regarding which McCollom may have
personal knowledge because of his employment with Fulton. Fulton will promptly reimburse McCollom for all
reasonable and documented expenses and costs McCollom may incur as a result of providing such assistance
(but not later than the end of the calendar year following the year in which such expenses are incurred), including
travel costs and reasonable legal fees to the extent McCollom reasonably believes, based upon the advice of
counsel, that separate representation is warranted.

10. Non-Disparagement: Each of Fulton (on behalf of itself and its affiliated entities and Releasees or any
officer, director, employee or agent thereof) and McCollom agrees not to slander or defame and, except as to the
matters described in Section 4 or Section 14, otherwise disparage the other party hereto. For purposes of this
Section, “Fulton” includes its affiliated entities, the Releasees, or any current, past or future officer, director,
employee, or agent thereof.

11. Restrictive Covenants: McCollom agrees to abide by the Restrictive Covenants and Clawback
provision set forth in Section 5 of McCollom’s Employment Agreement, which is expressly incorporated into this
Separation Agreement.



12. Integration and Modification: This Separation Agreement, along with McCollom’s Employment
Agreement and the agreements referenced therein, contain all of the promises and understandings of the parties.
There are no other agreements or understandings except as set forth herein, and this Separation Agreement may
be amended only by a written agreement signed by all the parties.

13. Advice to Consult Legal Representation: McCollom is advised to consult with legal counsel of
McCollom’s choosing, at McCollom’s own expense regarding the meaning and binding effect of this Separation
Agreement and every term hereof prior to executing it.

14. Rights Not Impeded: Nothing in this Separation Agreement is intended to, or does, preclude McCollom
or Fulton from (a) contacting, reporting to, responding to an inquiry from, communicating with, or otherwise
participating in an investigation conducted by any federal, state, or local governmental agency, commission, or
regulatory body; (b) giving truthful testimony or making statements under oath in response to a subpoena or other
valid legal process or in any legal proceeding; (c) otherwise making truthful statements as required by law or valid
legal process; or (d) engaging in any legally protected activities. Nothing in this Separation Agreement shall
preclude McCollom or Fulton from fulfilling any duty or obligation that he or it may have at law, from responding to
any subpoena or official inquiry from any court or government agency, including providing truthful testimony,
documents subpoenaed or requested or otherwise cooperating in good faith with any proceeding or investigation,
or from taking any reasonable actions to enforce his or its rights under this Separation Agreement. In accordance
with applicable law and notwithstanding any other provision of this Separation Agreement, nothing in this
Separation Agreement impedes McCollom’s or Fulton’s right to communicate with any governmental agency
about possible violations of laws or regulations or requires him or it to provide any prior notice to the other or
obtain the other’s prior approval before engaging in any such communications.

15. Independent Consideration: Whether or not expressly stated in this Separation Agreement, all
obligations and undertakings made and assumed in this Separation Agreement are in consideration of the mutual
promises and undertakings the other party undertakes in this Separation Agreement.

16. Governing Law and Jurisdiction: This Separation Agreement shall be enforced in accordance with
the laws of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania without regard to any principles of choice of law that may
otherwise be applicable, except to the extent superseded by federal law (e.g. ERISA). McCollom hereby consents
and agrees to the jurisdiction before a court of law in the City of Lancaster, the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania
or, if filed under federal law, in the Eastern District of Pennsylvania.

17. Modification; Waiver: No provision of this Separation Agreement shall be amended, modified, or
waived unless such amendment, modification, or waiver is agreed to in writing and signed by a duly authorized
representative of each party hereto. If a party, by its actions or omissions, waives or is adjudged to have waived
any breach of this Separation Agreement, any such waiver shall not operate as a waiver of any other subsequent
breach of this Separation Agreement.



    18.    Successors: This Separation Agreement is binding upon and shall inure to the benefit of
the parties hereto and their respective heirs, executors, administrators, personal or legal representatives,
successors and/or assigns.

    19.    Severability: If any provision of this Separation Agreement is or shall be declared invalid
or unenforceable by a court of competent jurisdiction, the remaining provisions shall not be affected thereby and
shall remain in full force and effect.

    20.    McCollom Acknowledgements: McCollom acknowledges that:

(a) McCollom has read this Separation Agreement and has had an opportunity to discuss it with
individuals of McCollom’s own choice, who are not associated with Fulton;

(b) Fulton has advised McCollom to consult with an attorney of McCollom’s own choosing;

(c) Neither Fulton nor its agents, representatives or employees have made any representations to
McCollom concerning the terms or effects of this Separation Agreement, other than those contained in the
Separation Agreement;

(d) McCollom has the intention of releasing all claims recited herein in exchange for the payments
and other consideration described herein, which McCollom acknowledges as adequate and satisfactory and
in addition to anything to which McCollom otherwise is entitled; and

(e) McCollom has returned all things in McCollom’s possession or control relating to Fulton’s
business, including but not limited to a Company-issued cell phone, files, all materials relating to any client,
keys, badges, or other identification, reports, correspondence, manuals, ledgers, or other proprietary
material pertaining to Fulton.

    21.    Consideration Period: McCollom acknowledges that McCollom has been provided with
at least twenty-one (21) calendar days following McCollom’s receipt of this Separation Agreement to consider the
offer of this Separation Agreement prior to entering into it. McCollom agrees to notify Fulton of acceptance of this
Separation Agreement by delivering a signed copy to Fulton, either by email or regular mail addressed to the
attention of Chief Human Resources Officer, Fulton Financial Corporation, One Penn Square, Lancaster, PA
17602 (Email address: BTaylor@fult.com). McCollom understands that the entire twenty-one (21) calendar day
period may be taken to consider this Separation Agreement. McCollom may return this Separation Agreement in
less than the full twenty-one (21) calendar day period. By signing and returning this Separation Agreement,
McCollom acknowledges that the consideration period afforded McCollom was a reasonable period of time to
consider fully each and every term of this Separation Agreement, including the general release set forth in Section
3.

    22.    Revocation Period. McCollom acknowledges that McCollom shall have seven (7)
calendar days after signing this Separation Agreement to revoke this Separation Agreement if McCollom chooses
to do so. If McCollom elects to revoke this Separation Agreement, McCollom shall give written notice of such
revocation to Fulton by delivering it to the Chief Human



Resources Officer at the above addresses, in such a manner that it is actually received by Fulton within the
seven-day period.

2 3 .    Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed by the parties in one or more counterparts, each of
which shall be deemed an original, but all of which together will constitute one and the same instrument, and
such counterparts may be delivered by facsimile or other electronic transmission such as DocuSign or emal I
and the reproduction of signatures by facsimile or other electronic transmission will be treated as binding as if
originals.

MARK R. MCCOLLOM EXPRESSLY ACKNOWLEDGES THAT HE HAS READ THE FOREGOING, THAT
HE HAS HAD SUFFICIENT TIME TO REVIEW IT WITH AN ATTORNEY OF HIS CHOOSING, THAT HE
UNDERSTANDS THE SEPARATION AGREEMENT'S TERMS AND CONDITIONS AND THAT HE INTENDS
TO BE LEGALLY BOUND BY IT.

IN WITNESS THEREOF, the parties have executed this Separation Agreement

MARK R. MCCOLLM FULTON FINANCIAL CORPORATION
/s/ Mark R. McCollom /s/ Natasha R. Luddington

Senior Executive Vice President and Chief Legal
Officer

Date: 2/26/2024 Date: 2/26/2024



 

Exhibit 10.2
FULTON FINANCIAL

CORPORATION

Time-Vested Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement (“Award Agreement”)

[GRANT DATE]
[PARTICIPANT NAME]
[HOME ADDRESS]

Dear [PARTICIPANT NAME]:

Pursuant to the terms and conditions of the 2022 Amended and Restated Equity and Cash Incentive Compensation Plan
(the “2022 Plan”) of Fulton Financial Corporation (“Fulton”), you are the recipient of a time-vested Restricted Stock Unit
(“RSU”) award (the “Award”). The Award has the following terms and conditions as of the Date of Grant. Capitalized terms
used herein but not defined shall have the meanings set forth in the 2022 Plan.

Granted To: [PARTICIPANT NAME]
Date of Grant: [GRANT DATE]
Number of Time-Vested RSUs Granted: [TOTAL AWARDS]
Restricted Period: Unless your Award is forfeited before the end of the Restricted Period,

the Restricted Period will end three years after the Date of Grant.
Retirement: Upon your Retirement eligibility as defined in the 2022 Plan, the

forfeiture restrictions on your award lapse.
Upon termination of employment due to Retirement,
Shares will be delivered to you no sooner than the date that is six
months following your Retirement date.

Death or Disability: Upon your death or Disability, your Award will vest, and Shares will be
delivered to you within 90 days of the date of death or Disability.

Layoff or Position Elimination: Upon a lay off or position elimination, your Award will vest and Shares
will be delivered to you within 60 days of the date of your layoff or
position elimination, subject to your execution of a severance
agreement and general release of claims in a form provided by Fulton
within 45 days of your last day of employment and such release
becoming effective. If you also are Retirement eligible as defined in the
2022 Plan, your Award will be delivered to you no sooner than the date
that is 6 months from your date of layoff or position elimination.



Change in Control: In the event of a termination of Continuous Service without Cause
during the 12-month period following a Change in Control, the
Restricted Period will expire with respect to 100% of your RSUs as of
the date of your termination of employment, and Shares will be
delivered to you within 60 days of the date of your termination of
employment, subject to your execution of a general release of claims in
a form provided by Fulton within 45 days of your last day of
employment and such release becoming effective. If you also are
Retirement eligible as defined in the 2022 Plan, your Award will be
delivered to you no sooner than the date that is 6 months from your
date of termination of employment.

Right to Dividend Equivalents:
Each RSU shall be credited with Dividend Equivalents, which shall be
paid on the Payment Date, (as defined
below), to the extent the underlying Shares vest.

Clawback: Your Award is subject to Fulton’s Mandatory Recovery of
Compensation Policy, the Amended and Restated Compensatory
Recovery “Clawback” Policy, and any clawback policy that may be
adopted by the Board or any committee thereof, and you are required
to comply with these policies. You acknowledge that future grants of
incentive compensation, and the continued vesting or earning of
currently held incentive compensation, are expressly conditioned upon
your agreement to comply with these policies.

Forfeiture: If your Continuous Service is terminated for any reason not approved
by the Committee or set forth in this Award Agreement, your Award will
not vest and will be forfeited in accordance with the 2022 Plan. Your
Award is subject to forfeiture until the expiration of the
Restricted Period, including all Dividend Equivalents, pursuant to the
terms of the 2022 Plan.

Termination for Cause: In the event of your termination of Continuous Service for Cause, or in
the event Fulton determines, after the date of your termination of
Continuous Service, that circumstances exist that would have given rise
to your termination for Cause, the Award will not vest, and Fulton shall
have the right to require your repayment of
any portion of your Award that previously vested.



Net Settlement of Award: Upon the lapse of the forfeiture restrictions with respect to your
Award, you authorize the withholding of Shares from your Award for
the payment of some or all your federal, state, or local taxes.

Timing of Award Payment: Payment will be made in the form of Shares within 60 days following
the end of the Restricted Period (or such earlier or later date as
specified herein, the “Payment
Date”).

The vesting of this Award will have tax consequences for you. We recommend that you consult your tax advisor. You have
thirty (30) days after the date of this Award Agreement to either accept or decline this Award. No Award under this Award
Agreement shall be released or otherwise paid unless and until you sign this Award Agreement.

Very Truly Yours,

Curtis J. Myers
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer Fulton Financial Corporation

I, [PARTICIPANT NAME], hereby acknowledge receipt of this Award made to me on the Date of Grant and agree to the
terms and conditions of this Award Agreement.

[REQUIRED SIGNATURE]

[ACCEPTANCE DATE]

I, [PARTICIPANT NAME], hereby acknowledge receipt of the attached Mandatory Recovery of Compensation Policy and
the attached Amended and Restated Compensatory Recovery “Clawback” Policy.

[REQUIRED SIGNATURE]

[ACCEPTANCE DATE]



 

Exhibit 10.3

FULTON FINANCIAL
CORPORATION

Performance Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement Total Shareholder Return
(“TSR”) Component (“Award Agreement”)

[GRANT DATE]
[PARTICIPANT NAME]
[HOME ADDRESS]

Dear [PARTICIPANT NAME]:

Pursuant to the terms and conditions of the 2022 Amended and Restated Equity and Cash Incentive Compensation Plan
(the “2022 Plan”) of Fulton Financial Corporation (“Fulton”), you are the recipient of a Performance Share Award (the
“Award”) in the form of performance-based restricted stock units (“PRSUs”). The Award has the following terms and
conditions as of the Date of Grant. Capitalized terms used herein but not defined shall have the meanings set forth in the
2022 Plan.

Participant: [PARTICIPANT NAME]
Date of Grant: [GRANT DATE]
Aggregate Total PRSUs for TSR
Component Performance: [TOTAL AWARDS] (at target for TSR Component)
Range of Potential PRSUs as a
Percentage of Target:

0.00% to 150.00% of target for TSR Component (determined on the Vest
Date)

Retirement: Upon your Retirement as defined in the 2022 Plan, the service requirements
of your unvested PSU Awards will be waived, and your PSUs will vest subject
to the remaining performance requirements of this Award Agreement. The
Award shall be paid as provided and/or permitted by the 2022 Plan. For
purposes of the 2022 Plan, Retirement is not a termination of
Continuous Service.

Death or Disability: Upon your death or Disability, the service requirements of your unvested PSU
Awards will be waived, and your PSUs will vest subject to the remaining
performance requirements of this Award Agreement. The Award shall be paid
as provided and/or permitted by the 2022 Plan.



Layoff or Position Elimination: Upon a layoff or position elimination, the service requirements of your
unvested PSU Awards will be waived, and your PSUs will vest subject to the
remaining performance requirements of this Award Agreement. The Award
shall be paid as provided and/or permitted by the 2022 Plan and subject to
your execution of a severance agreement and general release of claims in the
form provided by Fulton within 45 days of your last day of employment and
subject to such release becoming effective.

Change in Control: In the event of a termination of Continuous Service without Cause during the
12-month period following a Change in Control, the service requirements of
your unvested PSU Awards will be waived, and your PSUs will vest subject to
the remaining performance requirements of this Award Agreement. The
shares will be delivered to you subject to your execution of a general release
of claims in the form provided by Fulton within 45 days of your last day of
employment and such release becoming effective.

Forfeiture: If your Continuous Service is terminated for any reason not set forth above
and not otherwise approved by the Committee, your Award will not vest and
will be forfeited in accordance with the 2022 Plan.

Termination for Cause: In the event of your termination of Continuous Service for Cause, or in the
event Fulton determines, after the date of your termination of Continuous
Service for Cause, that circumstances exist that would have given rise to your
termination for Cause, the Award will not vest, and Fulton shall have the right
to require your repayment of any portion of your Award that previously vested.

Clawback: Your Award is subject to Fulton’s Mandatory Recovery of Compensation
Policy and the Amended and Restated Compensatory Recovery “Clawback”
Policy.

Net Settlement of Award: Upon the lapse of the forfeiture restrictions or the waiver of the service
requirements with respect to your Award, you authorize the withholding of
Shares from your Award for the payment of some, or all of your federal,
state, and local taxes.

Performance Period: [DATE], to [DATE]
Performance Goal: Achievement of TSR growth during the Performance Period measured on a

percentile basis relative to the 2024 peer group, approved by the Committee.
Shares at Target: [TOTAL AWARDS]
Determination of PRSUs earned: The Committee will determine no later than [DATE], the extent to which the

Performance Goals have been achieved and
the level of achievement.



Vest Date: The later of [DATE], or the date the Committee certifies as to the achievement
of the Performance Goal.

Dividend Equivalents:
Each PRSU shall be credited with Dividend Equivalents, which shall be paid
on the Payment Date, to the extent the underlaying Shares are earned.

The Post-Employment Restrictive Covenant Agreement attached hereto as Exhibit A is incorporated in its entirety into this
Award Agreement. The vesting of this Award will have tax consequences for you. We recommend that you consult your
tax advisor. You have thirty (30) days after the date of this Award Agreement to either accept or decline this Award. No
Award under this Award Agreement shall be released or otherwise paid unless and until you sign this Award Agreement.

Very Truly Yours,

Curtis J. Myers
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer Fulton Financial Corporation

I, [PARTICIPANT NAME], hereby acknowledge receipt of this Award made to me on the Date of Grant and agree to the
terms and conditions of this Award Agreement and to the Post-Employment Restrictive Covenant Agreement attached as
Exhibit A.

[REQUIRED SIGNATURE]

[ACCEPTANCE DATE]

I, [PARTICIPANT NAME], hereby acknowledge receipt of the attached Mandatory Recovery of Compensation Policy and
the attached Amended and Restated Compensatory Recovery “Clawback” Policy.

[REQUIRED SIGNATURE]

[ACCEPTANCE DATE]



Exhibit A

Post-Employment Restrictive Covenant Agreement

1. Consideration. In consideration for the grant of the Performance Restricted Stock Unit Award (“PRSU”)
between [PARTICIPANT NAME] (“Participant”) and Fulton Financial Corporation (“Fulton”) to which Participant agrees
Participant is not otherwise entitled, Participant agrees as follows.

2. Effect on Other Restrictive Covenant Agreements. Participant’s obligations under this Award Agreement
are in addition to and supplement Participant’s obligations under any preexisting agreement between Participant and
Fulton regarding non-competition, non- solicitation, and/or non-disclosure of Fulton’s confidential information or that of its
customers in effect at the time Participant signs this Award Agreement.

3. Fulton. For purposes of this Exhibit, Fulton shall mean Fulton, its successors, and all its present or future
subsidiaries or affiliates.

4. Non-Solicitation. During the one (1) year period following Participant’s separation of employment (the “Non-
Solicitation Restricted Period”), Participant shall not, directly, or indirectly:

(a) call upon, solicit, service or accept business of the type provided by Fulton or its subsidiaries or
affiliates from any customer of Fulton or its subsidiaries or affiliates, or in any way interfere with the relationship
between any such customer and Fulton (including, without limitation, making any negative or disparaging
statements or communications regarding Fulton or its current, past or future personnel);

(b) request that any customer of Fulton not purchase products or services from Fulton, or curtail or cease
its business with Fulton;

(c) solicit, induce, or entice or attempt to solicit, induce, or entice any employee or independent contractor
of Fulton to leave the employ or engagement of Fulton, or in any way interfere with the relationship between Fulton
and any employee or independent contractor thereof; or

(d) except with the consent of the Board or one of its committees, hire or offer employment or engagement
to any employee or independent contractor of Fulton who was employed or engaged by Fulton during the Non-
Solicitation Restricted Period.

5. Confidential Information. Participant acknowledges that through Participant’s employment with Fulton,
Participant will have access to, or may contribute to, certain commercially valuable information and trade secrets
belonging to Fulton (collectively, “Confidential Information,” as further defined below). Participant further acknowledges
that,



to safeguard its legitimate interests, it is necessary for Fulton to protect its Confidential Information by keeping it
confidential. Participant acknowledges that Fulton’s Confidential Information is vital to its success and was acquired and/or
developed by Fulton only after considerable expense, time, and energy. Participant acknowledges that Fulton would not
otherwise disclose Confidential Information to Participant without the existence of the provisions of this Exhibit and that the
unauthorized disclosure and/or use of Confidential Information would cause Fulton to suffer substantial and irreparable
harm.

(a) Definition of Confidential Information: The term “Confidential Information” means any and all data and
other information related to the business of Fulton that has value to Fulton and is not generally known to the public
(whether or not it constitutes a trade secret). Such Confidential Information includes, but is not limited to: data or
information relating to any of Fulton’s past, present, or future products or services; customer lists; customer
information; fees, costs, and pricing lists or structures; mailing lists; the identity of customers; techniques of doing
business; financial and profit information; investment strategies; marketing strategies; competitive information;
advertising; compensation information; analysis; reports; formulas; computer software; designs; drawings;
trademarks and brand names under development; accounting and business methods; databases; inventions and
new developments and methods, whether patentable or reduced to practice; the existence or terms of any contracts
or potential contracts; plans for future business; and materials or information embodying or developed by use of any
such Confidential Information. Confidential Information does not include information that is or becomes publicly
available through no fault of Participant. This provision adds to, and does not limit, Fulton’s rights pursuant to any
laws generally protecting confidential information and trade secrets.

(b) Prohibited Use or Disclosure of Confidential Information: Participant shall not, at any time during
Participant’s employment by Fulton or after termination (whether voluntary or involuntary), directly or indirectly, use,
cause to be used, or disclose and Confidential Information of which Participant becomes aware, except to the
extent a particular disclosure or use is required in the performance of Participant’s assigned duties for Fulton.
Participant also agrees not to remove any documents, material or equipment containing Confidential Information
from Fulton’s premises, except as required in the performance of Participant’s assigned duties for Fulton, and to
immediately return any such documents, materials, or equipment at the termination of employment (whether
voluntary or involuntary, and regardless of the reason).

(c) All records, files, software, memoranda, reports, price lists, leads, customer lists, drawings, training
materials, workflows, phone lists, plans, documents, technical information, and other tangible items (together with
all copies of such documents and things) relating to the business of Fulton, which Participant shall use or prepare
or come in contact with in the course of, or as a result of, Participant’s employment shall, as between the parties to
this Agreement, remain the sole property of Fulton. Laptop computers, software and related data, information and
things provided to Participant by Fulton or obtained by Participant, directly or indirectly,



from Fulton, also shall remain the sole property of Fulton. Upon the termination of Participant’s employment for any
reason whatsoever, voluntarily or involuntarily (and in all events within 5 days of Participant’s date of termination),
and at any earlier time Fulton requests, Participant shall immediately return all such materials and things to Fulton
and shall not retain any copies or remove or participate in removing any such materials or things from the premises
of Fulton after termination or Fulton’s request for return. Participant shall not reproduce or appropriate for
Participant’s own use, or for the use of others, any property, Confidential Information or Fulton inventions, and shall
remove from any personal computing or communications equipment all information relating to Fulton.

(d) Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Agreement or otherwise, nothing in this Agreement
prohibits Employee from reporting in good faith any violations of federal law or regulation to any governmental
agency or entity, including but not limited to the Department of Justice (“DOJ”), the Securities and Exchange
Commission (“SEC”), Congress, and any agency or Inspector General, or making other disclosures that are
protected under the whistleblower provisions of federal law or regulation. Employee does not need Fulton’s prior
authorization to make any such reports or disclosures, and Employee is not required to notify Fulton that Employee
has made such reports or disclosures. Nothing in this Agreement shall preclude Employee from filing a good-faith
charge with or participating in an investigation by a government administrative agency enforcing civil rights or other
laws, such as the Equal Employment Opportunity Commission (“EEOC”), National Labor Relations Board (“NLRB”),
or any other federal, state or local government agency; however, Employee herein waives his right to receive any
individual relief, including monetary damages, resulting from any such charge, investigation, or Charge against any
of the Releasees. Notwithstanding the foregoing, this Agreement does not limit Employee’s right to receive an
award for information provided to the SEC.

(e) Participant is hereby notified that the immunity provisions in Section 1833 of title 18 of the United
States Code provide that an individual cannot be held criminally or civilly liable under any federal or state trade
secret law for any disclosure of a trade secret that is made (1) in confidence to federal, state or local government
officials, either directly or indirectly, or to an attorney, and is solely for the purpose of reporting or investigating a
suspected violation of the law, (2) under seal in a complaint or other document filed in a lawsuit or other
proceeding, or (3) to Participant’s attorney in connection with a lawsuit for retaliation for reporting a suspected
violation of law (and the trade secret may be used in the court proceedings for such lawsuit) as long as any
document containing the trade secret is filed under seal and the trade secret is not disclosed except pursuant to
court order.

6. Clawback. Participant acknowledges that the Participant is subject to the Mandatory Recovery of
Compensation Policy, the Amended and Restated Compensatory Recovery “Clawback” Policy, and any clawback policy
that may be adopted by the Board or any committee thereof and that Participant is required to comply with the policy.
Participant



acknowledges that future grants of incentive compensation, and the continued vesting or earning of currently held
incentive compensation, are expressly condition upon Participant’s agreement to comply with the policy. Further,
Participant acknowledges and agrees that should Participant violate any of the covenants in this Agreement, Participant
shall be required to pay back to Fulton the sum of money equal to the value of the Award paid to Participant.

7. Injunctive Relief.
(a) Participant acknowledges and agrees that the covenants contained herein are fair and reasonable in

light of the consideration paid hereunder by Fulton granting the Award to the Participant, and that damages alone
shall not be an adequate remedy for any breach by Participant of Participant’s covenants for non-competition, non-
solicitation and confidentiality which then apply and accordingly expressly agrees that, in addition to any other
remedies which Fulton may have, Fulton shall be entitled to injunctive relief in any court of competent jurisdiction for
any breach or threatened breach of any such covenants by Participant. Nothing contained herein shall prevent or
delay Fulton from seeking, in any court of competent jurisdiction, specific performance or other equitable remedies in
the event of any breach or intended breach by Participant of any of its obligations hereunder.

(b) In the event Participant breaches Participant’s obligations herein, the period specified therein shall be
tolled during the period of any such breach and any litigation seeking remedies for such breach and shall resume
upon the conclusion or termination of any such breach and any such litigation. The remedies set forth in this Award
are cumulative and in addition to any and all other remedies available to Fulton at law or in equity.



 

Exhibit 31.1 – Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

I, Curtis J. Myers, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Fulton Financial Corporation;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make
the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered
by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-
15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b. Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d. Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most
recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably
likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to
the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a. All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal
control over financial reporting.

Date: May 9, 2024

/s/ Curtis J. Myers

     Curtis J. Myers

     Chairman and Chief Executive Officer



 

Exhibit 31.2 – Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

I, Beth Ann L. Chivinski, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Fulton Financial Corporation;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make
the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered
by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-
15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b. Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d. Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most
recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably
likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to
the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a. All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal
control over financial reporting.

Date: May 9, 2024

/s/ Beth Ann L. Chivinski

     Beth Ann L. Chivinski

     Senior Executive Vice President and Interim Chief Financial Officer



 

Exhibit 32.1 - Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

I, Curtis J. Myers, Chief Executive Officer of Fulton Financial Corporation, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, certify that:

The Form10-K of Fulton Financial Corporation, containing the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024, fully complies with
the requirements of Sections 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. The information contained in the Form 10-K fairly presents, in all
material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of Fulton Financial Corporation.

Date: May 9, 2024

/s/ Curtis J. Myers

     Curtis J. Myers

     Chairman and Chief Executive Officer



 

Exhibit 32.2 - Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

I, Beth Ann L. Chivinski, Chief Financial Officer of Fulton Financial Corporation, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906
of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, certify that:

The Form 10-K of Fulton Financial Corporation, containing the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024, fully complies with
the requirements of Sections 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. The information contained in the Form 10-K fairly presents, in all
material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of Fulton Financial Corporation.

May 9, 2024

/s/ Beth Ann L. Chivinski

     Beth Ann L. Chivinski

     Senior Executive Vice President and Interim Chief

     Financial Officer


